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INQUIRY RESUME ON 5 JULY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing ,  Ms Mole fe .   Good  

morn ing ,  everybody.  

ADV DORFLING :    Good morn ing ,  Cha i r.   I  be l ieve  i t  i s  

appropr ia te  th i s  morn ing  to  say good morn ing  ACJ and not  

DCJ anymore .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  good morn ing  to  you.  

ADV DORFLING :    I  thought  you had enough on your  p la te  

as  i t  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  we l l ,  a t  leas t  w i th  the  comple t ion  o f  10 

the  hear ing  o f  o ra l  ev idence and w i th  the  group o f  peop le  

tha t  a re  he lp ing  me wi th  the  ana lys i s  o f  ev idence i t  makes  

i t  poss ib le  to  car ry  ou t  my funct ions.   A lo t  o f  peop le  were  

th ink ing  tha t  i t  is  a  new appo in tment ,  bu t  i t  i s  no t  an  

appo in tment ,  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  i f  you  are  Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice 

and the  Deputy  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  i s  away,  in  te rms o f  the  law 

you are  requ i red  to  per fo rm the  funct ions o f  the  Ch ie f  

Jus t ice  as  Act ing  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  w i thout  be ing  appo in ted ,  i t  

i s  au tomat ic  un less  you a re  no t  ava i lab le ,  in  wh ich  case  

then you do not ,  bu t  yes ,  so  I  had to  exp la in  to  a  lo t  o f  20 

peop le  tha t  were  send ing  me messages  to  say  

congra tu la t ions ,  say ing  no ,  no ,  no ,  i t  i s  no t  an  

appo in tment ,  bu t  anyway.   Good morn ing ,  everybody.   

Good morn ing ,  Mr  Na i r.  

MR NAIR :    Morn ing ,  morn ing  ACJ.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  thank you,  thank you.   

A l r igh t ,  I  th ink  le t  us  do  the  oa th  aga in  and then we can 

cont inue.   Reg is t ra r,  do  you want  to  admin is te r  the  oa th  

p lease?  

REGISTRAR :    W i l l  you  s t i l l  be  tak ing  the  oa th?  

MR NAIR :    Yes,  madam.  

REGISTRAR :    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR NAIR :    My fu l l  names are  Desmond Na i r.  

REGISTRAR :    Do you have any ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  10 

MR NAIR :    No,  I  do  no t .  

REGISTRAR :    Do you cons ider  t he  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR NAIR :    Yes,  I  do .  

REGISTRAR :    Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 

tha t  you w i l l  g ive  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and  

noth ing  bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand  

and say;  so  he lp  me God.  

MR NAIR :    So  he lp  me,  God.  

DESMOND NAIR:   (d.s.s. )  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  thank you very  much.   

Ms Mole fe ,  do  you want  to  cont inue f rom there?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV DORFLING :    Mr  Cha i r,  i f  I  may pe rhaps jus t  be fore  

we commence.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

ADV DORFLING :    I  have th i s  morn ing  a t  09 :30  d iscovered 

on my e-mai l  inbox an e-mai l  tha t  we rece ived f rom Madam 

Mole fe  las t  n igh t  a t  23 :03 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

ADV DORFLING :    Add ing  to  the  ex i s t ing  bund le  o f  

documents  tha t  i s  in  f ron t  o f  you as  T23,  th ree  more  

s ta tements ,  be ing  two a f f idav i t s  o f  Mr  Be joo  dated the  9 t h  

o f  Apr i l  2019 and the  16 t h  o f  August  2019 and a  fu r ther  

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Ma ten jwa dated the  16 t h  o f  September  2019.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV DORFLING :    I  have not  seen th i s  un t i l  09 :30  th is  

morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

ADV DORFLING :    I  have qu ick ly  contac ted  Mr  Na i r  to  jus t  

d iscuss th is  w i th  h im.   We have  prev ious ly  been  made 

possessed o f  i t  as  a  resu l t  o f  happen ings in  f ron t  o f  the  

Mag is t ra tes  Commiss ion ,  so  i t  i s  no t  nove l  o r  new.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV DORFLING :    Bu t  i t  ra ises  cer ta in  i ssues.   You wou ld  20 

know f rom the  ev idence so  fa r  p resented tha t  there  is  some 

substant ia l  fac tua l  d isputes  be tween the  ev idence o f  

Mr  Be joo ,  Mr  le  Roux and Magis t ra te  Na i r.   We have not  

consu l ted  on  i t .   I  have spoken to  Mr  Na i r,  we are  ready to  

p roceed,  we do not  want  to  de lay  the  process.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV DORFLING :    Bu t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  i t  may occas ion  us  

the  need to  have the  mat te r  s tood down to  cons ide r,  

Mr  Na i r  w i l l  i nd ica te  when tha t  happens.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV DORFLING :    There  is  a lso  a  mat te r  o f  fu r ther  

substance tha t  a r ises  f rom tha t  and tha t  i s  the  possess ion  

o f  the  Commiss ion ,  the  Commiss ion ’s  possess ion  o f  these  

a f f idav i t s .   We be l ieve  they fo rm par t  o f  what  was 

d isc ip l ina ry  p roceed ings in  f ron t  o f  the  Mag is t ra tes  10 

Commiss ion  and  we are  no t  su re  how the  Commiss ion  

became possessed o f  i t .  

I t  a lso  t r iggers  the  issue o f  whether  o r  no t  i f  there  

are  fac tua l  d ispu tes  those shou ld  be  dea l t  w i th  by  way o f  

an  app l i ca t ion  fo r  c ross-examinat ion  o f  these w i tnesses,  

l i ke  we have done w i th  Mr  le  Roux .   I  do  no t  want  to  dera i l  

these proceed ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV DORFLING :    I  th ink  we shou ld  proceed.   We wi l l  

cons ider  our  pos i t ion  and to  the  ex ten t  tha t  Mr  Na i r  i s  20 

uncomfo r tab le  w i th  p roceed ing ,  dea l ing  w i th  these 

a f f idav i t s  he  w i l l  ind ica te  so  and the  we may seek an  

ad journment  fo r  tha t  purpose,  bu t  we a re  ready to  p roceed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  jus t  to  sum up as  I  unders tand  

you,  you are  say ing  tha t  the ,  a re  these new documents  tha t  
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have been obta ined by  the  Commiss ion  and have been  

fu rn ished to  you?  You have not  had a  chance to  consu l t  

w i th  Mr  Na i r  about  them,  bu t  he  is  aware  o f  them.   He may  

be asked on them to  the  ex ten t  tha t  he  is  comfor tab le ,  he  

can dea l  w i th  them and g ive  answers .   To  the  ex ten t  tha t  

he  may not  be  ab le  he  w i l l  ind ica te ,  in  wh ich  case there  

m ight  be  a  need fo r  an  ad journment  fo r  you to  consu l t  w i th  

h im.  

ADV DORFLING :    That  i s  indeed  our  pos i t ion ,  thank you  

Mr  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Ms Mole fe ,  do  you want  

to  say anyth ing  about  tha t?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  the  th ree  a f f idav i t s ,  

th ree  o f  the  a f f idav i t s  a re  Mr  Be joo ’s  s ta tements  tha t  were  

re fer red  to  by  Mr  Na i r  in  our,  dur ing  our  p rev ious sess ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MOLEFE :    The th i rd  one is  a  s ta tement  by  

Mr  Maten jwa,  wh ich  is  a  s ta tement  made to  you Cha i r,  in  

te rms o f  Regu la t ion  10 (6) .   I t  a lso  does not  imp l ica te  

Mr  Na i r,  a l l  he  does is  he  dea ls  very  br i e f l y  w i th  how he  20 

unders tood the  ar rangement  be tween Mr Na i r  and 

Mr  Be joo .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Where  do  I  f ind  them in  here ,  on  

what  page are  they?  

ADV MOLEFE :    So the  f i rs t  s ta tement ,  Cha i r,  i t  s ta r ts  a t ,  i f  
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you  go to  page 302.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We are  us ing  the  BOSASA bund le  5 .  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And what  page,  202?  

ADV MOLEFE :    302,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    302?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  and they go  a l l  the  way up un t i l  page 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  take  them one by  one.   302 

To 303,  tha t  i s  a  s ta tement  o f  Mr  Be joo .  10 

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Then page 306 beg ins ,  i s  the  beg inn ing  

o f  an  a f f idav i t  by  Mr  Maten jwa and tha t  goes up  to ,  tha t  

goes up to  324  and you sa id  i t  i s  an  a f f idav i t  tha t  

Mr  Maten jwa fu rn ished to  the  Commiss ion  in  compl iance  

w i th  a  d i rec t ion  issued by,  a  d i rec t ion  i ssued by  me in  

te rms o f  Regu la t ion  10(6 ) ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes Cha i r,  and  Cha i r,  you sk ipped  the  

second a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Be joo  tha t  appears  a t  page 304 to 

305.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  oh  I  m issed tha t .   Okay,  and wh ich  

one o f  these two d id  you say Mr Na i r  re fe r red  to  a l ready in  

h is  ev idence prev ious l y?  

ADV MOLEFE :    He re fer red  to  bo th  o f  them Cha i r,  bu t  he  

dea l t  in  de ta i l  w i th ,  he  rea l l y  dea l t  w i th  the  conf l i c t s  o f  the  
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vers ion  [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MOLEFE :    So  those are  the  two s ta tements  we 

rece ived f rom Mr  Na i r  and then the  th i rd  s ta tement ,  as  I  

ment ioned Cha i r,  i s  tha t  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  you say  you rece ived them f rom 

h im.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The Be joo ,  the  two Be joo  s ta tements?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay,  okay,  so  a t  leas t  tha t  i s  the  

answer  to  counse l ’s  inqu i ry  about  how they were ,  how the  

Commiss ion  go t  them.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then Mr  Maten jwa ’s  one is  an  

a f f idav i t  tha t  was sought  f rom h im by the  Commiss ion .  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   A l r igh t  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  

be l ieve  we can s tar t .   Mr  Na i r,  a re  you ready?  

MR NAIR :    I  am ready,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you  very  much.   Cont inue,  

Ms Mole fe .  

ADV MOLEFE :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Today we  w i l l  be  

cont inu ing  w i th  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Desmond Na i r,  as  has  

a l ready become apparent .   H is  ev idence re la tes  to  the  
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a l legat ions per ta in ing  to  the  spec ia l  p ro jec ts  under  

BOSASA work  s t ream.   I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  summar i se  

Mr  Na i r,  Cha i r,  Mr  Na i r ’s  ev idence thus fa r,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and maybe  before  you do tha t ,  jus t  

fo r  the  pub l i c  le t  us  ment ion  tha t  m is ter,  we are  jus t ,  in  

regard  to  Mr  Na i r  we a re  jus t  comple t ing  ev idence tha t  he  

s ta r ted  g iv ing  on  Wednesday even ing ,  bu t  we  had to  

ad journ  because o f  the  cur few,  so  we are  jus t  comple t ing  

h is  ev idence tha t  o therw ise  wou ld  have been comple ted  on 

June 30.   Yes,  okay.  10 

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  and h is  ev idence re la tes  to  the 

spec ia l  p ro jec ts  i n  the  BOSASA work  s t ream.   In  summary 

Cha i r,  Mr  Na i r  has conceded tha t  secur i t y  cameras were  

ins ta l led  a t  h is  p r iva te  res idence,  bu t  he  says tha t  th is  i s  

pursuant  to  a  pr iva te  ag reement  be tween h imse l f  and 

Mr  Be joo  and he says tha t  the  agreed cont rac t  amount  was 

approx imate l y  R50 000.  

To th is  end,  Cha i r,  Mr  Na i r  has  tes t i f ied  tha t  he  

made an o f fe r  to  Mr  Be joo  to  ass i s t  h im wi th  f i rs t ly  CCTV 

cameras,  second ly  w i th  the  e lec t r i c  fence i f  i t  needed 20 

repa i rs ,  and th i rd ly  w i th  the  a la rm i f  i t  needed d is repute .    

Mr  Na i r  s ta tes  tha t  the  cameras were  ins ta l led  on  

the  4 t h  o f  October  2016,  he  has fu r the r  tes t i f ied  tha t ,  

cont rary  to  the  te rms o f  the  agreement ,  Mr  Be joo  had  

p laced the  hard  dr ive  and moni to r  o f  the  cameras  in  what  
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Mr  Na i r  has re fe r red  to  as  an  undercover  garage and he  

says tha t  the  agreement  was tha t  Mr  Na i r  wou ld  be  ab le  to  

see the  feed f rom the  cameras in  the  TV in  h i s  bedroom 

and tha t  he  wou ld  be  ab le  to  rew ind and fas t  fo rward  the  

record ing  f rom the  cameras.  

Mr  Na i r  then fu r ther  s ta ted  tha t  Mr  Be joo ,  tha t  he  

had made severa l  a t tempts  over  a  coup le  o f  months  to  ge t  

ho ld  o f  Mr  Be joo  so  tha t  he  cou ld  remedy the  breach,  bu t  

tha t  Mr  Be joo  e i ther  d id  no t  take  h is  ca l l s  o r  wou ld  te l l  h im 

tha t  he  wou ld  ge t  back to  h im,  wh ich  Mr Na i r  says never  10 

happened.   Mr  Na i r  then to ld  you  Cha i r,  tha t  he  has le f t  

th is  equ ipment  in  a  non funct iona l  s ta te .  

Now inso far  as  whethe r  o r  no t  there  is  an  imp l ied  

in f luence o f  hav ing  taken advantage o f  the  invo l vement  o f  

BOSASA o r  i t s  subs id ia ry  be ing  invo l ved in  the  work  a t  the  

cour t  where  Mr  Na i r  s i t s ,  Mr  Na i r ’s  ev idence so  fa r  i s  tha t  

as  the  Ch ie f  Mag is t ra te  he  p lays  no  ro le  whatsoever  in  the  

award ing  o f  cont rac t s  and Mr  Na i r  has a lso  tes t i f ied  tha t  

h is  invo lvement  has on ly  been in  what  he  re fer red  to  as  a  

s tee r  co ,  in  te rms o f  wh ich  he  wou ld  engage w i th  20 

s takeho lders  and  some serv ice  p rov iders  inso far  as  the  

progress o f  work  by  the  serv ice  prov iders .  

He fu r ther  s ta ted  tha t  Mag is t ra tes  do  not  have 

approva l  funct ions in  respect  o f  work  tha t  shou ld  be  done,  

as  tha t  fa l l s  w i th in  the  ambi t  o f  the  Cour t  Managers  and  
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Fac i l i t i es .   Cha i r,  to  th is  end Mr Na i r  fu r ther  tes t i f ied  tha t  

where  a  dec i s ion  had to  be  taken  by  the  Cour t  Manager,  

the  Cour t  Manager  wou ld  mere ly  seek h is  op in ion  and then  

he f ina l l y  tes t i f ied  Cha i r,  tha t  by  the  year  2011  he had  

a l ready de legated the  funct ion  o f  cha i r ing  the  s teer  co  to  

h is  most  sen ior  Mag is t ra te ,  so  tha t  i s  in  essence Mr  Na i r ’s  

ev idence so  fa r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Can you jus t  con f i rm tha t  I  summed i t  up  

cor rec t l y?  10 

MR NAIR :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MR NAIR :    I t  i s  cor rec t ,  i f  I  may jus t  add in  respec t  o f  the  

purchase,  the  ag reed pu rchase p r ice  o f  the  equ ipment  I  

ind ica ted  tha t  i t  was a  max imum pr ice  o f  R50 000,  in  o ther  

words you can go  up to  R50 000.  

Then in  respect  o f  the  compla in t  about  the  shoddy,  

pa the t ic  workmansh ip ,  apar t  f rom the  fac t  tha t  I ,  rewind,  

fo rward  w ind  v i sua ls  on  the  TV in  my room or  anyone,  

anywhere  e l se  in  the  house and I  wou ld  have had to  leave 20 

the  house to  the  undercover  ga rage to  do  so ,  wh ich  fu r ther  

pu t  me a t  r i sk ,  th is  was cont rary  to  the  exp ress te rms o f  

our  agreement .  

There  was no v i sua ls  on  the  TV a t  a l l ,  so  i f  there ,  

had there  been v isua ls  tha t  wou ld  have been one  issue,  
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there  wou ld  have  been v isua ls ,  bu t  there  wou ld  no t  have  

been record ing  and rewind ing  fac i l i t i es ,  bu t  in  add i t ion  to  

them not ,  to  my not  be ing  ab le  to  rewind,  fo rward  w ind  and  

see what  i s  go ing  on  i n  the  p reced ing  hour  o r  f i ve  m inutes  

or  whenever,  there  were  no  v i sua ls  a t  a l l  in  my home f rom 

the  ins ta l la t ion  o f  the  camera ,  so  i t  was jus t  cameras pu t  

and the  feed in to  the  house d id  no t  d isp lay  any v i sua ls .  

ADV MOLEFE :    Thank you.  

MR NAIR :    And I  sa id  tha t  in  my ev idence.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Thank you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  cont inue Ms Mole fe .  

ADV MOLEFE :    Now you have to ld  the  Cha i r  tha t  Mr  Be joo  

had  in t roduced about  two peop le  t ha t  he  re fe r red  to  as  h i s  

boys wou ld  be  ass i s t ing  h im wi th  the  secur i t y  upgrade a t  

your  house,  co r rec t?  

MR NAIR :    I  d id  no t  say  he  in t roduced them to  me.   He 

was in  the i r  p resence,  he  came to  my house w i th  these two  

gent lemen and he  le f t  me w i th  the  impress ion  tha t  he  wou ld  

be  manag ing  i t  o r  pe r fo rm ing the  under tak ing  as  we had 

agreed,  and he wou ld  be  ass i s ted  by  the  two techn ic ians 20 

and there  were  two techn ic ians i n  the  yard  and I  fo rmed 

the  impress ion  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  two or  th ree  o f  them tha t  

wou ld  be  he lp ing  Mr  Be joo .   I  d id  no t  meet  the  gen t lemen,  

they were  in  the  veh ic le  ou ts ide .  

ADV MOLEFE :    And do you know what  the i r  names were?  
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MR NAIR :    No,  I  d id  no t  meet  them,  I  d id  no t  ta lk  to  them.   

Mr  Be joo  sa t  in  my lounge fo r  abou t  an  hour,  he  was  in  the  

presence o f  my w i fe  and I .   I  saw the  gent lemen  in  the  

veh ic le  when he  ar r i ved and I  saw the  gent lemen in  the  

veh ic le  when he ex i ted  the  house.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Okay,  now can I  re fe r  you to  page 252 o f  

the  bund le?    

CHAIRPERSON:    Whi le  you are  go ing  there ,  Mr  Na i r,  can I  

jus t  conf i rm tha t  my unders tand ing  o f  your  ev idence on  

Wednesday was  co r rec t  tha t  your  a r rangement  w i th  10 

Mr  Be joo ,  you unders tood,  in  te rms o f  tha t  a r rangement  

you unders tood tha t  i t  was go ing  to  be  Sondo lo  who was,  

wh ich  was go ing  to  be  car ry ing  ou t  the  ins ta l la t ions ,  o r  i s  

the  pos i t ion  tha t  you thought  Mr  Be joo  was go ing  to  do  th is  

in  h is  p r i va te  capac i ty?  

MR NAIR :    The la t te r  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.   Th i s  was between 

Mr  Be joo  and I  and there  were  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR NAIR :    Yes,  i t  was no t ,  i t  was not  on  the  

unders tand ing  tha t  Sondo lo  wou ld  be  do ing  i t .   I  had 20 

noth ing  to  do  w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  your  coming in to  contac t  w i th  

Mr  Be joo ,  was i t  as  a  resu l t  o f  work  tha t  he ,  Sondo lo  was 

do ing  fo r  the  cour t  o r  d id  you know h im . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR NAIR :    That  i s  co r rec t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Or  d id  you know h im,  o r  d id  you know 

h im independent l y  o f  Sondo lo?  

MR NAIR :    No.   When the  cour t  burned in  2010 Sondo lo  

was the  camera ,  the  CCTV company tha t  was a t  the  cour t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR NAIR :    I  met  h im in  2010 and the re  were  S teer  Co 

meet ings where  the  s takeho lders  wou ld  be  p resent  and a  

few o f  the  se rv i ce  prov iders  wou ld  be  present .   Mr  Be joo  

wou ld  have been among the  se rv i ce  prov iders  in  one o f  two 

o f  those meet ings .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR NAIR :    Subsequent  to  tha t  over  a  pe r iod  o f  say  s ix  to  

seven years  f rom 2010 to  2016 I  wou ld  speak to  Mr  Be joo ,  

because he was  l i ke  as  good as  a  ch i ld  in  my house,  I  

mean he was an  employee o f  the  serv i ce  prov ide r,  l i ke  a 

c leaner  i s  an  employee o f  the  serv i ce  prov ide r  o f  the 

c lean ing  s ta f f  and then I  wou ld  see h im f rom t ime to  t ime,  

maybe two or  th ree  t imes a  year  he  wou ld  come in to  my 

o f f i ce  jus t  to  g ree t  me,  he l lo  Mr  Na i r,  how are  you,  how are  

th ings,  no th ing  to  do  w i th  work  tha t  Sondo lo  d id .  20 

I f  there  was someth ing  tha t  re la ted  to  the  work  tha t  

Sondo lo  d id  a t  the  expense o f  repet i t ion ,  Mr  Be joo ’s  p lace  

and wherever  h i s  p r inc ip les  were ,  they wou ld  s ta r t  on  

opera t iona l  i ssues w i th  the  Cour t  Manager  and w i th  the 

Fac i l i t i es .   I f  there  was a  mat te r  tha t  was rea l l y  necessary  
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o r  i t  was necessary  fo r  a  mat te r  to  be  brought  to  the 

a t ten t ion  o f  s takeho lders  then i t  wou ld  be  a  meet ing  and 

there  wou ld  be  consensus reached.   A t  tha t  po in t  I  wou ld  

perhaps see h im ,  bu t  my fami l ia r i t y  w i th  h im grows f rom 

the  fac t  tha t  he  was f requent ly  on  the  f loo r,  I  saw h im o f ten  

and I  go t  to  know h im persona l ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   Ms Mole fe?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Thank you,  Mr  Na i r.   

Can you p lease tu rn  to  page 252?  

MR NAIR :    Yes,  madam.  10 

ADV MOLEFE :    I  am re fer r ing  you to  paragraph 9  o f  you r  

s ta tement .  

MR NAIR :    Yes.  

ADV MOLEFE :    In  fac t  paragraph 10,  pardon me.  

MR NAIR :    Yes.  

ADV MOLEFE :    You say tha t  the  t ransact ion  you entered 

in to  was s t r i c t l y  be tween yourse l f  and Mr  Be joo  and you  

have sa id  tha t  you have never  spoken to  o r  known 

[ ind is t inc t ]  o r  any  o f  the  Sondo lo  D i rec to rs ,  then in  t he  las t  

sentence you say  tha t :  20 

“ I  w i l l  no t  d ispute  tha t  Mr  Maten jwa may have 

a t tended meet ings a t  my o f f i ce  a f te r  the  cour t  

burned in  2010. ”  

Now I  wou ld  l i ke  to  a t  th is  po in t  re fe r  you to  Mr  Maten jwa ’s  

s ta tement .   Cha i r,  th is  i s  the  s ta tement  I  re fe r red  to  ear l ie r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MOLEFE :    I  am go ing  to  ask  your  leave Cha i r,  to  

have the  s ta tement  tendered in to  ev idence as  T23.7 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Page?  

ADV MOLEFE :    306,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  th is  i s  Mr  Maten jwa ’s  a f f idav i t .   You 

are  ask ing  tha t  i t  be  admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  and marked as  

exh ib i t  what?  

ADV MOLEFE :    T23.7  p lease,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    T23.7?  10 

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Saram S imanga l i sa  

Trevor  Maten jwa ,  wh ich  s ta r t s  age page 306,  w i l l  be  

admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  and w i l l  be  marked as  EXHIB IT 23.7 ,  

okay.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Mr  Na i r,  can you go to  page 312?  

MR NAIR :    My pages a re  no t  numbered,  i f  you  can take  me 

to  the  page o f  the  s ta tement  i t se l f ,  i s  i t  page 8  and what  

parag raph?  

ADV MOLEFE :    A l r igh t ,  the  s ta tement  i t se l f  i s  wr i t ten  20 

there  as  page 7 .  

MR NAIR :    Yes? 

ADV MOLEFE :    I  am tak ing  you  to parag raph 16  o f  that  

s ta tement .  

MR NAIR :    Yes.  
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ADV MOLEFE :    Now th is  i s  Mr  Maten jwa ’s  ve rs ion  inso far  

as  the  ins ta l la t ion  a t  you r  house.  

MR NAIR :    Yes? 

ADV MOLEFE :    And he op ined on the  a l lega t ions o f  

Mr  le  Roux.  

MR NAIR :    Yes.  

ADV MOLEFE :    He says the re  tha t :  

“A l l  o f  the  a f f idav i t s  seem to  imp l ica te  me in  the 

ins ta l la t ion  o f  the  secur i t y  sys tem dur ing  or  about  

2016 a t  the  home o f  Mr  Desmond  Na i r  who was a t  10 

the  t ime the  Ch ie f  Mag is t ra te  o f  P re tor ia  ( the  Na i r  

ins ta l la t ion ) . ”  

In  16 .2  he  says:  

“The Na i r  ins ta l l a t ion  was prev ious l y  the  sub jec t  

mat te r  o f  an  inqu i ry  conducted by  the  Mag is t ra tes  

Commiss ion .   I  p rov ided tha t  Commiss ion  w i th  the  

fo l low ing s ta tement . ”  

And he goes on  to  quote  tha t  par t i cu la r  s ta tement .   He 

says:  

“ I  am a  major  male  and the  Sen io r  Execut ive  o f  20 

G loba l  Techno logy So lu t ions Propr ie ta ry  L im i ted ,  

p rev ious l y  known as Sondo lo  IT,  a  member  o f  the  

A f r i can G loba l  Opera t ions Propr ie ta ry  L im i ted  

Group o f  Compan ies  (AGO).   I  am in fo rmed tha t  the  

Mag is t ra tes  Commiss ion  is  invest i ga t ing  a l legat ions 
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made by  a  Mr  R ichard  le  Roux,  an  a f f idav i t  deposed 

to  dur ing  the  course  o f  the  Jud ic ia l  Commiss ion  o f  

Inqu i ry  in to  S ta te  Capture ,  co r rup t ion  and f raud in  

the  pub l i c  sec to r,  inc lud ing  organs o f  s ta te .   I  do  

no t  have d i rec t  knowledge o f  the  a l legat ions. ”  

He then says:  

“GTS he ld  a  cont rac t  fo r  the  main tenance o f  

secur i t y  a t  the  Mag is t ra tes  Cour t  in  Pre tor ia . ”  

Over lea f  he  then cont inues and says:  

“ I  a t tended meet ings w i th  o f f i c ia ls  in  the  10 

Depar tment  o f  Jus t ice ,  inc lud ing  f rom t ime to  t ime 

the  Ch ie f  Mag is t ra te  o f  P re to r ia ,  Mr  Denn is  Na i r,  to  

d iscuss opera t iona l  mat te rs  per ta in ing  to  the  

agreement  under  wh ich  GTS has been cont rac ted  by  

the  Depar tment  o f  Jus t ice .    

In  pass ing  and a t  one such meet ing ,  the 

prec ise  da te  o f  wh ich  I  cannot  reca l l ,  one o f  the 

GTS Managers ,  Mr  Be joo ,  b rough t  to  my a t ten t ion  

tha t  the  Ch ie f  Mag is t ra te  had concerns fo r  h is  

sa fe ty  and was unhappy w i th  the  secur i t y  sys tem 20 

then ins ta l led  a t  h is  p r i va te  home.  

Upon the  request  o f  Mr  Be joo  I  ag reed to  an  

eva lua t ion  o f  the  ex is t ing  secur i t y  sys tem by GTS.   

Save fo r  agree ing  to  the  a foresa id  eva lua t ion ,  I  had  

no invo l vement  in  o r  knowledge o f  the  ins ta l la t ion  o f  
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secu r i t y  sys tem a t  the  pr i va te  home o f  Mr  Na i r,  

whethe r  by  GTS or  anyone e l se .   The f i rs t  t ime I  

learned o f  any such ins ta l la t ion  hav ing  apparent ly  

been under taken  by  GTS was when d i sc losures  to  

tha t  e f fec t  were  made dur ing  the  course  o f  the  S tate  

Capture  Commiss ion .   I  deny the  hearsay a l legat ion  

o f  Mr  le  Roux tha t  I  ins t ruc ted  Mr  Agr i t i  to  do  

anyth ing  w i th  regard  to  the  secur i t y  ins ta l la t ion  a t  

the  pr iva te  home o f  Mr  Na i r.  

In  pass ing  I  po in t  tha t  Mr  Agr i t i  as  the  Ch ie f  10 

Opera t ing  Off i ce r  o f  AGO rare ly,  i f  ever,  took  

ins t ruc t ions f rom Execut ives  w i th in  AGO and 

cer ta in ly  he  wou ld  no t  have done so  f rom me. ”  

Then in  the  body o f  h is  a f f idav i t  to  the  Commiss ion  a t  

parag raph 16.3  he  says tha t  he  conf i rms the  cor rec tness o f  

the  above s ta tement .   Now do  you w ish  to  comment  in  

respect  o f  the  quoted paragraph 4  o f  the  s ta tement  to  the  

Mag is t ra tes  Commiss ion  inso far  as  Mr  Maten jwa  hav ing  

met  w i th  h im f rom t ime to  t ime to  d iscuss opera t iona l  

mat te rs  per ta in ing  to  the  agreement  under  wh ich  GTS had 20 

been cont rac ted  by  the  Depar tmen t  o f  Jus t ice?  

MR NAIR :    Yes ,  thank you Ms Mole fe .   Now as  I  have 

ind ica ted  in  my  s ta tement  a t  parag raph 10,  the  las t  

sentence:  

“ I  w i l l  no t  d ispute  tha t  Mr  Maten jwa may have 
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a t tended meet ings a t  my o f f i ce  a f te r  the  cour t  

burned in  2010. ”  

So you w i l l  reca l l  Cha i r,  tha t  I  d id  ind ica te  to  you tha t  a f te r  

the  f i re  i t  became my respons ib i l i t y  to  show jud ic ia l  

leadersh ip .   You know when a  cour t  burns  Cha i r,  no t  on ly  i s  

i t  a  d isas te r,  i t  requ i res  leadersh ip  to  ge t  tha t  cou r t  to  run 

aga in  and up unt i l  today the  Pre tor ia  Cour t  has no t  been  

re furb ished or  renovated.  

I  met  w i th  s takeho lde rs  and I  a lso  met  w i th  serv ice  

prov iders  in  huge meet ings,  in i t ia l l y  fo r  the  f i rs t  month  or  10 

so  a t  the  po l i ce  s ta t ion  and then [ ind is t inc t ] .   There  wou ld  

be  between 30 and 40 peop le  in  those meet ings and the  

persons who wou ld  s ign i f i can t ly  cont r ibu te  to  the  

d iscuss ion  wou ld  be  my s takeho lders ,  be ing  the  

prosecutors ,  the  admin is t ra t ion  s ta f f  and the i r  management  

and the  in te rp re ters ,  o f  course  the  cour t  o rder l ies  and the  

po l i ce  as  we l l .  

S takeho lders  such as  those tha t  were  go ing  to  be  

invo l ved in  res to r ing  the  a i r  cond i t ion ing ,  those tha t  were  

go ing  to  be  invo l ved in  pu t t ing  up  the  pre  s lab  wa l ls  in  the 20 

undone po r t ion  and those tha t  were  invo lved in  secur i t y  

wou ld  f rom t ime to  t ime a t tend those meet ings,  hence I  say  

i f  Mr  Maten jwa had a t tended a  meet ing  o f  tha t  na ture  in  

2010 I  wou ld  no t  d ispute  tha t .   I  cannot  say  tha t  he  was not  

there .  
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What  I  can comment  on  is  tha t  in  2016,  I  canno t  

reca l l  meet ings w i th  Mr  Maten jwa  s ix  years  down the  l ine  

to  such opera t iona l  mat te rs .   Cha i r,  as  I  ind ica ted  in  my 

ear l ie r  ev idence,  I  handed over  th is  respons ib i l i t y  to  the  

most  sen ior  Mag is t ra te  a f te r  about  a  year.   I  took  the  

respons ib i l i t y  as  Head o f  the  Pr iva te  Sect ion  fo r  a  wh i le ,  

maybe two or  th ree  years .    

My o f f i ce  was upgraded f rom Ch ie f  Mag is t ra te  to  

C lus ter  Head around 2014 and tha t  takes me to  a  leve l  o f  

b l i s te r ing  issues.   So f rom a  governance po in t  o f  v iew you  10 

funct ion  as  a  Cha i rman o f  the  Board ,  i f  I  can  draw tha t  

para l le l .   You have got  no th ing  to  do  w i th  the  work  o f  the  

Execut ives  or  the  Sen ior  Mag is t ra tes  or  opera t iona l  

ind iv idua ls ,  so  i t  became even more  ra re  fo r  me to  meet  

serv i ce  prov iders  fo r  opera t iona l  issues and then f rom the  

las t  te rm in  2015  JP Mlambo had requested me to  engage 

w i th  JP Makgoba to  ac t  in  the  H igh  Cour t  in  Po lokwane and  

I  cont inued ac t ing  in  the  H igh  Cour t  in  Po lokwane f rom the  

f i rs t  te rm in  2015 r igh t  th rough unt i l  the  end o f  2016 and 

thereaf te r  in  2017 and 2018 I  remained fo r  80% of  the  t ime 20 

in  the  H igh  Cour t .  

In  o ther  words,  fo r  those th ree  years  and one 

quar te r  I  must  have spent  70% to  80% of  the  t ime ac t ing ,  

so  I  d id  no t  have anyth ing  to  do  in  2016 w i th  opera t iona l  

i ssues tha t  wou ld  have invo lved Mr Maten jwa and my 
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d iscuss ions w i th  m is ter  Be joo  w i th  regard  to  the  

ins ta l la t ion  a t  my  home,  because I  knew h im so  we l l  and 

because I  o f fe red  h im the  work  and he accepted the  o f fe r,  

i t  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  anybody and I  was a l i ve  to  the 

fac t  tha t  Mr  Be joo  was an employee o f  the  serv i ce  

prov ider.  

I  cou ld  have no dea l ings w i th  h is  p r inc ipa l s  o r  the  

D i rec tors  o f  the  company,  indeed Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  know who  

they were ,  I  d id  no t  know who they were .   The Depar tment  

wou ld  change or  wou ld  award  cont rac ts  on  a  year l y  o r  10 

every  two  years  to  d i f fe ren t  serv i ce  prov iders ,  to  d i f fe ren t  

funct ions.   

I f  we had c lean ing  s ta f f  fo r  one  year  he  cont rac t  

wou ld  change w i thout  me knowing.   I  wou ld  f ind  new 

c lean ing  s ta f f  o r  new secur i t y  peop le  a t  the  cour t  and I  

wou ld  be  in t roduced to  the  F loor  Manager  and perhaps  

somet imes one o f  the  members  o f  tha t  serv ice  prov ider  

company.   Obv ious l y  the  person i s  go ing  to  be ,  has been 

awarded some k ind  o f  work  in  the  cour t ,  he  w i l l  come and 

meet  the  Head o f  Off i ce ,  I  am the  fa ther- f igu re  o f  tha t  20 

o f f i ce ,  no  d i f fe ren t  i f  there  were  such cont rac t s  awarded a t  

a  hosp i ta l  and you wou ld  go  and meet  the  Super in tendent  

Genera l  o r  the  most  sen ior  s ta f f .  

So th is  meet ing  tha t  Mr  Maten jwa  re fers  to  o r  the  

meet ings tha t  he  a t tended w i th  o f f i c ia ls  f rom the  
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depar tment ,  inc lud ing  f rom t ime to  t ime the  Ch ie f  

Mag is t ra te  o f  P re tor ia ,  Mr  Denn is  Na i r,  tha t  a lone w i l l  te l l  

you,  my name is  no t  Denn is ,  he  s imp ly  d id  no t  know me 

we l l  enough to  know my cor rec t  name when he re fers  to  

th is  a f f idav i t  and tha t  i s ,  these meet ings tha t  he  re fers  to ,  I  

am unaware  o f  and they d id  no t  happen.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   Ms Mole fe?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Thank you.   Then a t  the  quoted  

paragraph 6  o f  Mr  Maten jwa ’s  s ta tement  he  says  tha t  on  

request  by  Mr  Be joo  he,  Mr  Maten jwa,  agreed  on an 10 

eva lua t ion  o f  the  ex i s t ing  secur i t y  system by GTS.   Do you 

have any know ledge about  any d iscuss ion  be tween  

Mr  Maten jwa and Mr  Na i r  inso far  as  the  eva lua t ion  i t se l f?  

MR NAIR :    Do you mean Mr  Be joo? 

ADV MOLEFE :    Mr  Be joo ,  pardon  me.   Thank you.  

MR NAIR :    Ja .   Is  tha t  paragraph 6 ,  Ms Mole fe?  

ADV MOLEFE :    I  quoted paragraph 6 ,  yes .  

MR NAIR :    Wel l ,  I  was not  aware ,  Mr  Be joo  a t  no  po in t  

to ld  me tha t  a f te r,  a t  any po in t  in  as  fa r  as  persona l  

d iscuss ions w i th  me,  two a t  my  o f f i ce  and th ree  a t  my  20 

home and in  the  over  10  te lephon ic  d i scuss ions f rom me to  

h im,  leav ing  those f rom h im to  me ,  a t  no  po in t  d id  he  te l l  

me tha t  he  had engaged Mr Maten jwa or  Agr i t i  o r  

Mr  Watson or  anybody e l se .   I  d id  no t  know these names.  

When I  heard  Mr  le  Roux ment ion ing  these names  
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on  the  31 s t  o f  January  I  cou ld  no t ,  I  d id  no t  know these 

peop le  and hence I  say  i f  such ind iv idua ls  were  pa r t  o f  the  

groups,  la rge  gather ings in  2010 I  wou ld  no t  know.   When I  

say  ‘know’ I  mean know wel l  enough to  s i t  a t  a  res taurant  

and say he l lo  Mr  Agr i t i ,  how are  you,  oh  I  remember  you.   

No,  no ,  I  d id  no t  know them and he,  and to  answer  your  

quest ion ,  a t  no  po in t  d id  he  ment ion  Mr  Maten jwa,  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Ms Mole fe?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Now you have to ld  the  Cha i r  tha t  in  you r  

unders tand ing  th is  was pure l y  a  pr i va te  agreement .  10 

MR NAIR :    Yes.  

ADV MOLEFE :    D id  m is ter  who ever  ment ion  to  you hav ing  

h is  own company? 

MR NAIR :    No,  no ,  no ,  he  d id  no t .   I  asked h im to  do  th is  

fo r  me persona l l y  because th i s  man was on the  f loor,  he  

was the  Pro jec t  Manager  in  charge o f  the  cameras,  he  was  

check ing  on  the  techn ic ians,  so  he  wou ld  know how the  

ins ta l la t ions  work ,  he  wou ld  know who the  supp l ie rs  were  

and I  engaged h im on tha t  bas is .  

When he came to  my home he ind ica ted  to  me tha t  20 

he  wou ld  source  the  goods f rom the  supp l ie rs  h imse l f ,  so  

th is  was someth ing  tha t  was pure ly  be tween Mr Be joo  and  

I ,  no t  because he  had some o the r  company.   I t  wou ld  be  no  

d i f fe ren t  Cha i r,  i f  my cous in ’s  husband worked fo r  a  la rge  

a i r  cond i t ion ing  company,  I  approached h im and asked h im 
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whethe r  he  cou ld  ass is t  me wi th  a i r  cond i t ion ing ,  because  

he knew where  to  ge t  i t ,  he  knew how to  pu t  i t ,  come and 

he lp  me on a  weekend and do tha t .   That  does not  mean  

tha t  he  must  have had h is  own company,  so  no ,  th is  was  

not ,  I  am unaware  i f  he  has go t  h i s  own company.   I  d id  no t  

engage h im wi th  h is  company.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Okay,  so  when  he sa id  tha t  he  wou ld  

source  the  goods  h imse l f  f rom supp l ie rs ,  d id  the  two o f  you 

have any ar rangement  inso far  as  a  prepayment  o r  depos i t  

o f  any k ind?  10 

MR NAIR :    No madam,  what  had happened was Mr  Be joo  

had engaged w i th  me dur ing  August .   I  s ta r ted  these 

d iscuss ions w i th  h im in  Ju ly.   He came to  my home in  

August  and when  he le f t  my home the  unders tand ing  was  

tha t  Mr  Be joo  was s t i l l  sourc ing  the  equ ipment  and he was  

do ing ,  le t  me say  h is  homework.  

There  was a  long span o f  t ime,  about  four  weeks 

when I  had not  heard  f rom Mr Be joo  a t  a l l .   In  fac t  I  had 

g iven up home,  th ink ing  th is  guy was foo l ing  a round when 

Mr  Be joo  ca l led  me a t  the  end o f  September,  the  1s t  o r  2 n d  20 

o f  October  to  te l l  me tha t  he  wou ld  be  ready to  s ta r t  the 

job  the  next  week I  was very  exc i ted ,  because I  was s t i l l  

busy w i th  tha t  lengthy  t r ia l  invo lv ing  the  bomb ings in  

Sekhukhune Mtukakomo and I  was s t i l l  g lad ,  I  was ve ry  

g lad  tha t  he  had eventua l l y  come to  the  depar tment .    
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I  had p laced my comple te  fa i th  and t rus t  in  h im tha t  

I  wou ld  le t  h im p roceed and we wou ld  d iscuss the  issue o f  

the  pr ices ,  e t  ce tera ,  a f te r  he  had done the  job ,  t rus t ing  

tha t  he  wou ld  no t  exceed the  amount  o f  R50 000.   He knew 

the  br ie f ing  tha t  I  had g iven h im,  i t  was s imp ly  to  pu t  on ,  

ins ta l l  cameras,  repa i r  the  th ings  where  necessary,  check 

the  a la rm and repa i r  where  necessary.   I  d id  no t  ask  h im  

fo r  a  space cra f t  o r  anyth ing .  

ADV MOLEFE :    So  he was  to  ob ta in  a l l  these equ ipments  

a t  h is  own cost  and you wou ld  la te r  repay h im.  10 

MR NAIR :    Wel l ,  tha t  i s  how we proceeded on the  

unders tand ing  and hence the  v iew tha t  I  he ld  tha t  i t  was  

agreed tha t  he  wou ld  per fo rm and thereaf te r  I  wou ld  render  

the  pe r fo rmance,  because a t  the  t ime tha t  he  ca l led  me to  

te l l  me he was go ing  to  s ta r t  the  next  week and when he  

ca l led  to  say tha t  he  was s tar t i ng  on  tha t  he  d id  no t  

ment ion  tha t  th is  i s  the  pr ice ,  th is  i s  what  I  have in  m ind.    

I t  was based on t rus t ,  he  had taken a  very  long t ime 

and I  sa id  go  ahead,  so  the  unders tand ing  o f  i t  wou ld  be  

tha t  do  the  job  and I  w i l l  pay  you la te r.  20 

ADV MOLEFE :    A l r igh t ,  now my unders tand ing  o f  h im 

per fo rming under  the  cont rac t  i s  tha t  i t  cou ld  be  d iv ided  

in to  two aspects ,  the  f i rs t  i s  h im purchas ing  the  equ iva len t ,  

as  you say you have agreed and  then the  second  par t  i s  

the  ac tua l  ins ta l l a t ion .   A re  you say ing  tha t  the  agreement  
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was tha t  he  wou ld  purchase the  equ ipment  by  h imse l f  f rom 

h is  own pocket  and tha t  he  wou ld  then ins ta l l  tha t  

equ ipment  on ly  a f te r  bo th  the  purchase and ins ta l la t ion ,  

wou ld  you pay h im the  amount  o f  R50 000?  

MR NAIR :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.   He ind i ca ted  to  me tha t  

he  knew the  supp l ie rs ,  he  wou ld  ge t  i t  a t  cos t  and because  

he wa i ted  so  long to  s ta r t  the  job  and to ld  me tha t  he  was  

go ing  to  s ta r t  the  job  I  le t  h im proceed on the  bas is  tha t  he  

wou ld  pay h imse l f  and i f  he  needed money he wou ld  le t  me 

know.  10 

The prob lem was  when I  came back and found tha t  

i t  was a  th i rd  g rade d i saste r,  fo r  me the  issue o f  the  cost  o f  

the  equ ipment  and what  he  was to ld  d id  no t  come to  the 

fa l l .   I  ca l led  h im to  say tha t  th is  i s  a  mess,  we l l  to  te l l  h im 

tha t  i t  was not  work ing ,  no t  funct ion  as  we had agreed.  

ADV MOLEFE :    So  you were  no t  a t  a l l  invo lved in  

choos ing  the  type o f  equ ipment  tha t  you wanted,  the  type  

o f  cameras tha t  you wanted.  

MR NAIR :    No,  no ,  I  p laced my comple te  fa i th  and t rus t ,  

th is  i s  a  man whom I  knew fo r  seven years  was  dea l ing  20 

w i th  secur i t y  cameras,  ins ta l la t ions ,  f i x ing ,  I  d id  no t  need  

myse l f ,  you know,  as  i f  I  was shopp ing  fo r  t i l es  and a  

cer ta in  co lour  o f  a  t i le ,  I  wanted a  bas ic  sys tem and once 

he agreed to  do  the  job  i t  was a  quest ion  o f  we l l ,  le t  us  ge t  

i t  done and we w i l l ,  we w i l l  se t t le  i t .   I  was not ,  I  d id  no t  
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cons ider  i t  to  be  someth ing  o f  you know,  tha t  was  o f  b ig  

magn i tude,  i t  was  a  s imp le  ins ta l la t ion .  

In  fac t  Cha i r,  I  have subsequent ly  inso far  as  the  

CCTV had a  para l le l  sys tem ins ta l led  a t  my home fo r  no t  

more  than R10 000 and i t  was done in  a  day.   I  took  i t  th is  

was not  go ing  to  be  rocket  sc ience  and  I  was not  ask ing  fo r  

someth ing  you know,  tha t  I  had to  spend t ime and there  is  

an  ou tbu i ld ing  be ing  bu i l t  and I  need to  go  and check i t ,  

no ,  no ,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Ms Mole fe?  10 

ADV MOLEFE :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Be joo  den ies  ever  

hav ing  d i scussed a  budget  w i th  you and f rom your  

reco l lec t ion  can you te l l  the  Cha i r  whether  you remember  

i f ,  as  your  ev idence,  there  was ever  a  d is t inc t ion  made  

between the  cost  o f  the  equ ipment  as  we l l  as  the  cost  o f  

labour?  

MR NAIR :    No,  no ,  there  was no d is t inc t ion  made.   When I  

ind ica ted  to  h im  tha t  I  had se r ious concerns w i th  my 

secur i t y  be fore  o f  the  mat te r  in  Sekhukhune and because 

o f  the  type o f  work  tha t  I  was do ing  in  Po lokwane,  20 

t rave l l ing  e t  ce te ra ,  I  to ld  h im I  had an amount  o f  up  to  

R50 000 ava i lab le ,  I  needed th is ,  can you he lp  me.  

Mr  Be joo  ind ica ted  tha t  i t  wou ld  no t  be  a  prob lem,  

bu t  he  needed to  come home and have a  look a t  the  house.   

He came home a  few weeks la te r  and we agreed he wou ld  
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p roceed.   There  was no d i s t inc t ion  o f  labour  was go ing  to  

be  so  much and equ ipment  i s  go ing  to  be  so  much .   As fa r  

as  I  was concerned even the  work ,  do  the  work  and get  

done w i th  i t .  

ADV MOLEFE :    A l r igh t ,  now Mr  R ichard  le  Roux has 

a l leged tha t  the  cost  o f  the  equ ipment  was approx imate ly  

R66 384.   Can I  re fe r  you to  page  60 o f  the  bund le?   Th is  

i s  Mr  R ichard  le  Roux ’s  supp lementary  a f f idav i t ,  in  

par t i cu la r  I  am tak ing  you to  paragraph 103.   A re  you 

there?  10 

MR NAIR :    Bear  w i th  me madam,  I  jus t  want  to  f ind  the 

re levant  page.   Yes madam,  I  see i t .  

ADV MOLEFE :    I  am tak ing  you to  paragraph 103.   There  

Mr  le  Roux a l leges tha t  the  cost  o f  the  equ ipment  was  

R66 384.94.   Do  you w ish  to  comment  on  the  cost  o f  the  

equ iva len t?  

MR NAIR :    Thank you,  thank you  madam.   Bear  w i th  me,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR NAIR :    Ja  Cha i r,  le t  me s tar t  by  say ing  tha t  the  20 

invo i ces do  not  re f lec t  the  cor rec t  to ta ls  and d i f fe r  f rom the  

va lue  o f  the  equ ipment  as  tes t i f ied  to  by  Mr le  Roux 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry  Mr  Na i r,  when you are  mov ing  a t  

the  invo ices you move out  o f  the  screen.  
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MR NAIR :    Sor ry,  sor ry,  so r ry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  jus t  make sure  tha t  I  can see you 

a l l  the  t ime,  ja .   Okay,  cont inue.  

MR NAIR :    Wel l ,  le t  me s tar t  by  say ing  Cha i r,  tha t  

Mr  le  Roux when he gave ev idence befo re  you on the  28 t h  

o f  January  he  se t  the  cost  o f  the  pro jec t  a t  R200 000 and  

when he tes t i f ied  or  when he deposed to  h is  s ta tement  in  

June 2020 he ad jus ted  the  cost  to  be  R252 864.   Now when 

Mr  le  Roux tes t i f ied  the  impress ion  I  go t ,  hence the  shock  

o f  my l i fe  because there  was no agreement  w i th  Mr  Be joo  10 

to  exceed R50 000,  tha t  i t  was go ing  to ,  i t  was  about  

R200 000,  i t  on l y  emerges f rom th is  tha t  these invo ices  

re f lec t  the  cost  o f  R66 384 inso fa r  as  the  equ ipment .  

In  respect  o f  these invo ices Cha i r,  i f  I  can  take  you 

to  the  ac tua l  invo ices themse lves you w i l l  no t ice  tha t  these 

invo ices re f lec t  the  20 t h  and 21 s t  o f  September  and  

a t tached to  the  invo ices tha t  I  was g i ven there  is  an  

invo i ce  a lso  fo r  the  7 t h  o f  October  wh ich  speaks to  another  

amount .  

Now these invo ices speak to  another  amount .   Now 20 

these invo ices,  the  two tha t  you are  re fer r i ng  to  Ms Mole fe ,  

i f  I  can  re fer  you to  them.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Sor ry  Mr  Na i r,  be fore  you p roceed.   Cha i r,  

the  par t i cu la r  invo ices appear  a t  page 155 a l l  the  way to  

page 150.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV MOLEFE :    P lease proceed,  Mr  Na i r.  

MR NAIR :    These invo ices Commiss ioner,  do  no t  bear  

Mr  le  Roux ’s  s ignature  and i f  you  look a t  the  bund le  tha t  

you gave me las t  n igh t  o r  over  the  weekend in  respect  o f  

a l l  the  o ther  so-ca l led  benef ic ia r i es  i t  i s  e i ther  R ichard  

le  Roux o r  Johan Four ie .  

The ones tha t  re la te  to  the  ins ta l la t ion  a t  my home 

bears  no  s ignatu re  by  Mr  le  Roux or  Mr  Four ie ,  tha t  i s  one.   

Number  two,  i f  you  look a t  the  invo i ce  wh ich  is  page 116  10 

Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MOLEFE :    That  i s  155 o f  the  b lack  number ing .  

MR NAIR :    Yes.   There  a re  handwr i t ten  numbers  on  th is  

invo i ce  and i t  i s  a  concern  fo r  me tha t  the  invo ice  ha  

shown numbers  wh ich  re la te  to  equ iva len t  w i th  no  ser ia l  

numbers  and no amounts ,  so  I  ac tua l l y  have a  prob lem wi th  

th is  invo i ce  and when Mr  le  Roux  deposed to  a  s ta tement  

on  the  15 t h  o f  May 2019 to  the  po l i ce  in  respect  o f  th is  

mat te r  he  typed  out  an  a f f idav i t  o r  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  he  

s igned re fers  to  the  equ ipment  in  invo ices wh ich  are  no t  20 

these.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Mole fe?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  do  no t  know to  what  ex ten t  the  d ispute  

about  what  the  equ ipment  o r  the  ins ta l la t ions  may have  
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cos t ,  how impor tan t  i t  i s ,  bu t  you have got ,  you can ask  

quest ions on  i t  i f  you ,  i f  tha t  i s  someth ing  tha t  you wou ld  

l i ke  to  h igh l igh t .  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes Cha i r,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  dea l  w i th  the  

amount  o f  the  par t i cu la r  benef i t  as  has been a l leged and 

tha t  i s  the  reason why I  am tak ing  Mr  Na i r  th rough these 

amounts  and,  as  the  Cha i r  m ight  have heard ,  Mr  Na i r  has  

a lso  re fer red  to  an  amount  R252 000.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MOLEFE :    And I  wou ld  l i ke  h im to  comment  on  the  10 

add i t iona l  cos ts  i n  add i t ion  to  the  equ ipment ,  a lso  pursuant  

to  dea l ing  w i th  a  par t i cu la r  benef i t ,  an  amount  o f  benef i t  as  

has been a l leged.  

CHAIRPERSON:    How much t ime  wou ld  you,  do  you th ink  

you wou ld  need to  reach comple t ion?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Wel l ,  I  w i l l  be  dea l ing  w i th  those costs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Then I  w i l l  be  dea l ing  w i th  one las t  

aspect ,  so  I  th ink  I  can be done in  ha l f  an  hour.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  w i l l  g ive  you  15 minutes ’ t ime,  do  i t  20 

w i th in  15  minutes .  

ADV MOLEFE :    I  w i l l  t ry,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV MOLEFE :    Mr  Na i r,  my par t i cu la r  quest ion  to  you was  

your  comment  in  respect  o f  the  cost  o f  the  equ ipment .   A re 
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you  d isput ing  the  approx imate  va lue  o f  the  quest ion  o r  

what  exact l y  i s  your  par t i cu la r  d ispute  i n  respect  o f  the  

amount  o f  the  equ ipment?  

MR NAIR :    Wel l  Cha i r,  i f  the  invo i ces re la te  to  equ ipment  

a t  my home and I  can d isce rn  tha t  then i t  wou ld  be  much 

eas ier  fo r  me.   The equ ipment  on  these two pages,  on  

these two invo ices,  the  20 t h  and the  21 s t  where  i t  t ies  up  to  

the  equ ipment  a t  my home,  and I  am par t i cu la r l y  concerned  

because Mr  le  Roux,  and I  w ish  Cha i r,  w i th  your  leave to  

p resent  to  you and to  tender  in to  ev idence the  s ta tement  10 

made by  Mr  le  Roux where  he  re fe rs  to  the  i nvo ices  and in  

par t i cu la r  invo i ce  2472475 and invo ice  2472614 and the re  

is  no  re ference whatsoever  to  the  ser ia l  numbers  tha t  a re  

handwr i t ten  on  the  invo ices tha t  you have befo re  you 

Cha i r,  and I  can on ly  assume tha t  tha t  was wr i t ten  in  there  

a f te r  the  photographs were  taken  o f  the  equ ipment  a t  my 

home.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe Ms Mole fe ,  to  the  issue  o f  the  

invo i ces and where  i t  re la tes  to  the  equ ipment  tha t  was  

used a t  Mr  Na i r ’s  home cou ld  be  dea l t  w i th  by  way o f  20 

ra is ing  quest ions  tha t  you can,  we can send to ,  you can 

send to  h im and he can do an a f f idav i t  to  respond and he  

w i l l  ge t  a  chance to  check and see  whether  the  invo ices do  

re la te  to  the  equ ipment  used a t  h is  home.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Thank you.  



5 JULY 2021 – DAY 421 
 

Page 35 of 110 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  tha t  be  f ine?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Thank you Cha i r,  bu t  may I  jus t  ask  one  

more  quest ion  about  the  pr ice?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Mr  Na i r,  in  your  op in ion  what  wou ld  have  

been the  cost  o f  the  equ ipment  exc lud ing  add i t iona l  cos ts  

such as  labour?  

MR NAIR :    Ms  Mole fe ,  as  I  ind ica ted  to  you I  had a  

para l le l  sys tem ins ta l led  fo r  under  R10 000.   I  cannot  

es t imate  the  cost  o f  the  equ ipment  tha t  i s  here ,  because I  10 

can te l l  you  the  e lec t r i c  fence was not  rep laced o r  does not  

appear  to  be .  

There  are  cameras tha t  were  ins ta l led  and i t  

appears  as  i f  the  keypad was changed.   Th is  f igure  o f  

R252 000 you w i l l  rea l i se  Ms Mole fe ,  in  Mr  le  Roux ’s  e igh th  

a f f idav i t  regard ing  th is  mat te r,  I  am in  possess ion  Cha i r,  o f  

e igh t  s ta tements  by  Mr  le  Roux in  respect  o f  th is  mat te r,  

each one amend ing and chang ing  the  f igures .  

For  the  f i rs t  t ime in  the  s ta tement  tha t  i s  conta ined  

in  your  bund le ,  the  August  2020 s ta tement  there ,  20 

Mr  le  Roux puts  the  labour  a t  someth ing  l i ke  R167 000 and  

he a t t r ibu tes  i t  to  14  days ’ work  w i th  seven techn ic ians.   

Cha i r,  th is  job  d id  no t  take  more  than th ree  and  a  ha l f  

days,  I  know tha t  because a f te r  the  f i rs t  two days  I  was  

here .   I  never  saw Mr le  Roux a t  my home.   In  fac t  i t  i s  my 



5 JULY 2021 – DAY 421 
 

Page 36 of 110 
 

v iew tha t  Mr  le  Roux was not  here  a t  a l l  du r ing  the  

ins ta l la t ion .  

In  add i t ion  to  tha t ,  Cha i r,  the  work  tha t  was,  the re  

were  no  techn ic ians here  fo r  tha t  per iod  o f  t ime,  the  

inc lus ion  o f  the  techn ic ians is  to  boost  th is  amount  to  

somewhere  near  the  amount  tha t  he  tes t i f ied  about  and i f  I  

can  add as  to  why Mr  le  Roux wou ld  no t  have been a t  my  

home,  i f  you  look a t  the  da te  o f  the  s ignature  o f  the 

invo i ces Cha i r,  you w i l l  no te  tha t  these invo ices,  the  27 t h  o f  

September  as  the  da te  on  wh ich  the  equ ipment  was  10 

co l lec ted ,  Mr  le  Roux deposed to  an  a f f idav i t  in  March  

2019 where  he  says tha t  he  went  to  Rega l  Supp l i e rs  w i th  

four  men and co l lec ted  the  invo i ces on  tha t  day,  be ing  the  

27 t h  o f  September .  

I f  you  look a t  where  Mr  le  Roux was on the  27 t h  o f  

September  you w i l l  f ind  tha t  a t tached to  Mr  M lambo’s  

a f f idav i t  a re  t rave l  and accommodat ion  vouchers  fo r  

Mr  le  Roux and one Mr  Mdau whom he says was in  h is  

team,  tha t  they were  booked in  a t  East  London f rom the  

25 t h  to  the  27 t h  o f  September  in  respect  o f  some o the r  20 

pro jec t  and the  t ime on the  invo i ces is  a round 11:25 when 

the  goods were  co l lec ted .   Mr  le  Roux cou ld  no t  have 

commenced th is  job  on  the  27 t h  o f  September  l i ke  he  

a l leges in  h is  a f f idav i t  o f  the  6 t h  o f  March .   I t  i s  a  p i t y  

Cha i r,  we do not  have tha t  much t ime.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Those a f f idav i t s ,  those a f f idav i t ,  you 

sa id  Mr  le  Roux has deposed to  e igh t  a f f idav i t s  tha t  you  

have.  

MR NAIR :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  wou ld  l i ke  your  counse l  and Ms Mole fe  

to  see whethe r  the  Commiss ion  has go t  those,  a l l  o f  those  

a f f idav i t s  o r  no t  so  tha t  i f  there  are  some tha t  the 

Commiss ion  does  not  have you can fu rn ish  to  us  inso fa r  as  

they are  re levan t  to  the  issues tha t  the  Commiss ion  i s  

dea l ing  w i th .  10 

MR NAIR :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR NAIR :    So  I  am say ing ,  Cha i r  tha t  Mr  le  Roux  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The po in t  tha t  you have made about  h im 

be ing  in  East  London w i th  a t  leas t  one o f  the  members  o f  

h is  team tha t  you say he  sa id  he  went  to  Rega l  w i th ,  tha t  

wou ld  be  impor tan t ,  bu t  I  must  a lso  po in t  ou t  tha t  I  heard  

ev idence o f  Mr  le  Roux I  th ink  maybe two weeks back as  

we l l  as  Mr  N ingana,  Mr  N ingana was,  secur i t y  ins ta l la t ions  20 

were  made on h is  house as  we l l  by  Sondo lo /BOSASA and  

h is  s to ry  seems to  have some s im i la r  fea tures  w i th  yours .  

He sa id  the  ins ta l la t ions  were  de f in i te ly  done by  

BOSASA or  Sondo lo ,  tha t  i s  accepted,  bu t  he  sa id  the  

ins ta l la t ion  o f  secur i t y,  those secur i t y  ins ta l la t ions  were  
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made as  a  resu l t  o f  an  ar rangement  tha t  he  had made wi th  

somebody who was a  BOSASA Di rec tor  o r  employee or  

o f f i c ia l ,  bu t  he  sa id  i t  was jus t  an  ar rangement  tha t  they  

had ag reed upon .   He d id  no t  deny tha t  BOSASA peop le  

had ins ta l led  the  secur i t y,  bu t  h is  a r rangement  was w i th  a  

par t i cu la r  i nd iv idua l ,  he  d id  no t  know tha t  BOSASA or  

Sondo lo  wou ld  be  used.  

In  regard  to  tha t  mat te r  Mr  R ichard  o r  BOSASA’s  

s to ry  o r  vers ion  sa id ,  i t  was to  the  e f fec t  tha t  those 

ins ta l la t ions ,  the  job  took about  20  days and in  t ha t  case 10 

Mr  N ingana a lso  sa id ,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y  the  ar rangement  

he  had w i th  the  par t i cu la r  o f f i c i a l  o f  BOSASA or  Sondo lo  

was tha t  the  ins ta l la t ions  shou ld  no t  go  beyond e i ther  

R40 000 or  R50 000,  bu t  the  invo i ces tha t  were  pu t  up  a lso  

I  th ink  reached R200 000 and so  on .  

So I  am jus t  ment ion ing  tha t ,  you might  no t  be  

aware  o f  i t ,  bu t  I  am jus t  see ing  tha t  in  your  case i t  seems 

tha t  the  invo ices are  a l so  a  lo t  more  as  we l l  as  the  number  

o f  days seem to  be  a  lo t  more  than what  may,  on  your  

vers ion  may have  ac tua l l y  happened.  20 

MR NAIR :    You are  abso lu te ly  cor rec t ,  Cha i r,  abso lu te l y  

cor rec t .   I  was gone to  Durban fo r  two days,  when  I  came 

back th is  job  was  prac t ica l l y  done.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay a l r igh t .  

MR NAIR :    So  these 14 days and seven men is  nonsense,  
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w i th  respect  Cha i r,  w i th  respect .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Mole fe?  

ADV MOLEFE :    A l r igh t ,  thank you Cha i r.   You have to ld  

the  Cha i r  tha t  you d id  no t  re tu rn  the  equ ipment ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR NAIR :    Yes ,  ja  I  le f t  the  quest ion  as  i t  was in  the  

cond i t ion  tha t  i t  was on the  unders tand ing  tha t  Mr  Be joo  

wou ld  come back and rec t i f y  and remedy the  de fec t s ,  wh ich  

he  d id  no t  do .  

ADV MOLEFE :    And to  quote  you ,  you sa id  tha t  you le f t  10 

the  equ ipment  in  a  non funct iona l  s ta te .  

MR NAIR :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV MOLEFE :    D id  Mr  Be joo  or  anyone ever  seek any  

k ind  o f  payment  f rom you?  

MR NAIR :    Not  a t  a l l ,  no t  a t  a l l .   Wel l ,  I  d id  no t  know 

anyone e l se ,  bu t  Mr  Be joo ,  in  the  t ime tha t  I  know h im in  

the  d i scuss ions  be fore  the  ins ta l la t ion ,  dur ing  the  

ins ta l la t ion  and a f te r  the  ins ta l la t ion  and I  have a l ready 

to ld  you how many t imes i t  was Cha i r,  to  the  exc lus ion  o f  

anyone e lse  he  showed a  lo t  o f ,  and he was a  respect fu l  20 

guy,  he  wou ld  no t  dare ,  he  wou ld  no t  dare ,  Cha i r.  

ADV MOLEFE :    A l r igh t ,  and had you ever  cons idered  

mak ing  some so r t  o f  reduced payment  to  Mr  Be joo?  

MR NAIR :    No.   Why wou ld  I ,  Ms Mole fe?   In  a l l  fa i rness,  

i f  you  unders tand the  except io  non ad imple t i  con t rac tus  



5 JULY 2021 – DAY 421 
 

Page 40 of 110 
 

where  a  par ty  has,  i t  i s  agreed tha t  a  par ty  wou ld  de l i ver  

and per fo rm the i r  par t ,  I  do  no t  have to  per fo rm my par t  

un less  he  has fu l f i l l ed  h is  ob l iga t ion ,  tha t  i s  [ ind is t inc t ]  

Where  there  is  a  smal l ,  m inor  i ssue w i th  the  

per fo rmance obv ious ly  the  o ther  par t y  wou ld  be  expected 

to  pay.   Th i s  i ns ta l la t ion  was a  bo tched th i rd  g rade 

ins ta l la t ion  wh ich  d id  no t  benef i t  me in  any way and what  

i s  more ,  fu r the r  compromised my persona l  sa fe ty,  because  

f rom those smal l  screens tha t  Mr  Be joo  le f t  on  the  dev ice  

in  the  undercover  garage i t  cou ld ,  I  mean i t  ind ica ted  areas 10 

in  the  house tha t  were  ins ide  the  res idence and  i t  was  

access ib le  th rough the  ga rage.   There  are  th ree  garages,  

the  main ,  the  two  meter  garage door  and the  s ide  door,  so  

he  fa i led  to  comply  w i th  the  [ ind is t inc t ] ,  as  I  ind i ca ted  to  

you ear l ie r  in  my prev ious tes t imony.  

ADV MOLEFE :    A l r igh t ,  can I  re fe r  you to  page 223? 

MR NAIR :    223.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  page number,  223?  

ADV MOLEFE :    223,  Cha i r.   And then in  par t i cu la r  Mr  Na i r,  

I  am re fer r ing  you to  paragraph  16 o f  your  s ta tement .   20 

There  you speak  about  hav ing  ca l led  upon Mr Be joo  to  

remedy the  s i tua t ion  inso far  as  the  cameras and you say i t  

never  happened,  you then go and  say tha t  you eventua l l y  

f rom the  ag reement  and you ca l led ,  you ca l led ,  and you  

subsequent ly  caused the  cont rac tua l  de f ic ienc ies  in  the 
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ins ta l la t ion  to  be  remedied by  a  th i rd  pa r ty.  

Now on your  las t  appearance you sa id  tha t  the  

cameras were  in  a  non funct iona l  s ta te ,  so  can you  p lease  

c la r i f y  what  the  cor rec t  pos i t ion  is?  

MR NAIR :    Wel l ,  thank you Ms Mole fe .   Indeed I  had the  

a la rm,  because  i t  a lso  d id  no t  work ,  rec t i f ied  to  a  

funct iona l  s ta te  a f te r  the  ins ta l la t ion ,  I  a lso  had the  

e lec t r i c  fence rec t i f ied .   Inso far  as  the  camera  ins ta l la t ion  I  

d id  no t  touch i t  and more  espec ia l l y  a f te r  Mr le  Roux  

tes t i f ied  on  the  31 s t  o f  January  i n  l igh t  o f  the  fac t  tha t  10 

there  wou ld  be  concerns tha t  we wou ld ,  o r  I  wou ld  be  seen  

to  be  in te r fe r ing  w i th  the  sys tem,  I  go t  techn ic ians to  g ive  

me op in ions on  i ts  non- funct iona l i t y  and I  le f t  i t  as  i t  was.  

As I  sa id ,  I  have ins ta l led  a  pa ra l le l  sys tem to  cover  

myse l f ,  bu t  in  respect  o f  the  CCTV cameras I  d id  no t  touch 

tha t  sys tem a t  a l l .  

ADV MOLEFE :    A l r igh t ,  now Mr  le  Roux a l leges tha t  you  

made contac t  w i t h  h im in  re la t ion  to  an  issue you had w i th  

the  equ ipment  tha t  was ins ta l led  a t  your  house and I  am 

go ing  to  re fer  you to  h is  par t i cu la r  a f f idav i t .   So i f  you  go  20 

to  page 61 o f  EXHIBIT 21,  be ing  Mr  le  Roux ’s  s ta tement ,  

he  says tha t  in  respect  o f . . .   A re  you there ,  Mr  Na i r?  

MR NAIR :    I  am here ,  I  am here .   Sor ry,  madam.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  pag ina ted page,  Ms Mole fe?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Page 61,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    61?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  and I  am re fer r i ng  Mr  Na i r  to  

parag raph 111.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  cont inue.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Now Mr le  Roux  a l leges 

tha t  on  one or  two occas ions main tenance was done fo r  the  

fence and the  CCTV sys tem and then he says tha t  a  p roof  

o f  h is  contac t  w i th  you a f te r  the  i ns ta l la t ion  in  September  

2016 in  re la t ion  to  the  main tenance o f  work  per fo rmed is  

a t tached and in  tha t  respect  he  re fers  to  a  WhatsApp  10 

message between  you and h im on the  3 r d  o f  Apr i l  2017.  

The par t i cu la r  WhatsApp message  as  is  re fe r red  to  

wou ld  appear  a t  page 159 o f  the  bund le  and there  he  

summar ised the  communica t ion  be tween you and h im and i t  

says  there  tha t  he  says tha t  i t  appears  he  sent  you a  

message a f te r  you t r ied  to  contac t  h im and he,  excess ive  

b leed ing  Mr  le  Roux,  s ta ted  can I  ca l l  you  la te r,  jus t  busy  

in  a  meet ing .   Mr  le  Roux then says your  response  to tha t  

was ‘okay thank you ’ .   Now do you conf i rm or  deny hav ing  

had any communica te  w i th  Mr  le  Roux in  re la t ion  to  the  20 

main tenance o f  any o f  the  equ ipment  tha t  was ins ta l led  a t  

your  p roper ty?  

MR NAIR :    Thank you,  Ms Mole fe .   Yes,  indeed  I  deny 

hav ing  d i scussed the  issue o f  the  ins ta l la t ion  and 

main tenance w i th  Mr  le  Roux.   Th is  i s  a  s ingu la r,  a  
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sc reenshot  o f  a  message on the  3 r d  o f  Apr i l ,  seven months  

a f te r  th is  ins ta l la t ion  took p lace on my account  in  October  

and e igh t  months  on  Mr  le  Roux ’s  account ,  i f  i t  happened 

in  September.  

Now there  was no,  there  was no communica t ion  or  

d iscuss ion  w i th  Mr  le  Roux and I  regard ing  the  ins ta l la t ion .   

He speaks about  th is  WhatsApp,  I  w i l l  on ly  assume 

because he has  proper  WhatsApp communica t ions f rom 

some o ther  benef ic ia r ies  wh ich  are  in  the  packs and  I  have  

seen them las t  n igh t .   I t  may we l l  be  tha t ,  and I  cannot  10 

comment ,  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  I  ca l led  Mr  le  Roux seven  

months  a f te r  the  ins ta l la t ion ,  bu t  i t  wou ld  have been on ly  

a t  Mr  Be joo ’s  request  and on ly  i f  Mr  Be joo  gave  me h is  

number.  

Mr  Be joo  does not  pu t  a  contex t  to  these,  to  the  

message.   What  you see is  ac tua l l y  jus t  a  m issed ca l l .   In  

a l l  o ther  ins tances there  are  WhatsApp d iscuss ions and i t  

wou ld  be  very  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me to  say fo r  what  reason wou ld  

I  have ca l led  h im  except  i f  there  was occas ion  fo r  Mr  Be joo  

to  have,  I  compla ined to  Mr  Be joo  and Mr  Be joo  asked me 20 

to  ca l l  h is  techn ic ian ,  in  wh ich  case I  wou ld  have and there  

was no,  obv ious l y  as  per  the  message,  Mr  le  Roux sa id  I  

w i l l  ge t  back to  you or  I  w i l l  ca l l  you  back,  and he d id  no t .  

I f  Mr  le  Roux is  t ru th fu l  he  wou ld  say I  ca l led  

Mr  Na i r  back and I  d iscussed A ,  B ,  C,  D w i th  h im.   He 
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cannot  a t tach  a  screenshot  o f  a  m issed ca l l  and say  those  

are  WhatsApp messages,  then Cha i r,  he  contex tua l i ses  i t  i f  

you  look a t  h is  June 2020 s ta tement  a t  parag raph 111 on 

page 23,  he  exp la ins  the  reason beh ind  the  ca l l  f rom the  

WhatsApp tha t  i s  no t  a t tached fo r  the  main tenance work  

done on the  fence and CCTV.  

In  h is  s ta tement  in  June 2020 he is  ta lk ing  abou t  

WhatsApps and a  fence and CCTV sys tem,  in  h is  August  

s ta tement  he  contex tua l i ses  th is  s ing le  screenshot  w i th  

re fe rence to  mov ing  o f  the  camera  to  the  te lev is ion ,  wh ich  10 

conf i rms tha t  he  knew tha t  there  was a  p rob lem wi th  the  

camera  and the  te lev i s ion ,  bu t  he  d id  no t  hear  i t  f rom me 

and I  wou ld  no t  have b rought  i t  to  h is  a t ten t ion  seven  

months  la te r.  

ADV MOLEFE :    A l r igh t ,  do  you reca l l  your  ev idence to  the  

Cha i r  tha t  you had t r ied  to  contac t  Mr  Be joo  ove r  a  coup le  

o f  months?  

MR NAIR :    I  do .  

ADV MOLEFE :    So  is  i t  p laus ib le  tha t  tha t  cou ld  have  

been over  a  per iod  o f  e igh t  months? 20 

MR NAIR :    I  wou ld  say yes,  about  s ix ,  seven months  in  

respect  o f  the  CCTV prob lem and the  ins ta l la t ion  o f  the 

camera  equ ipment  and the  lack  o f  v isua ls .  

ADV MOLEFE :    A l r igh t ,  now when  you ident i f ied  your  

need fo r  add i t iona l  secur i t y  a t  your  res idence,  have you 
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ever  b rought  tha t  to  the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  Depar tment  o f  

Jus t ice?  

MR NAIR :    I  d id .   I  d id ,  Ms Mole fe .   I  ra ised th is  i ssue w i th  

Mr  Thobane who  was the  person  respons ib le  a t  Nat iona l  

Off i ce  fo r  the  Secur i t y  o f  Mag is t ra tes  around June 2016  

and I  ra i sed th is  i ssue o f  my res ident ia l  secur i t y  be ing  a  

concern  to  me wi th  the  then Reg iona l  Head  o f  the  

depar tment .  

She in fo rmed me tha t  un for tunate ly  fo r  ac t ing  

Judges there  was  no po l i cy  in  respect  o f  an  upgrade  o f  the  10 

res ident ia l  secur i t y,  there  was such in  respect  o f  o thers  

and i f  I ,  because there  was no  po l i cy,  i f  I  needed to  

p roceed w i th  i t  I  wou ld  have to  submi t  a  mot iva t ion  wh ich  

wou ld  go  to  he r  and f rom her  then to  Nat iona l ,  f rom 

Nat iona l  to  Treasury  and whatever,  so  she cou ld  no t  ass is t  

me.  

ADV MOLEFE :    So  th is  in te rac t ion  w i th  Mr  Thobane,  was i t  

be fore  you engaged Mr Be joo?  

MR NAIR :    Yes.  

ADV MOLEFE :    And was your  in te rac t ion  w i th  Mr  Thobane 20 

in  wr i t ing?  

MR NAIR :    No,  no ,  I  spoke to  h im verba l l y  and I  spoke to 

Ms D lamin i  the  Reg iona l  Head,  verba l l y  as  we l l .  

ADV MOLEFE :    And d id  you ever  pursue the  avenue tha t  

was proposed by  Thobane inso far  as  mot iva t ing  fo r  your  
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need fo r  add i t iona l  secur i t y?  

MR NAIR :    No,  i t  was not  p roposed by  Thobane ,  i t  was 

proposed by  the  Reg iona l  Head.   Thobane ind ica ted  tha t  he  

cou ld  no t  ass is t  me.   The Reg iona l  Head ind ica ted  tha t  

because there  i s  no  such po l i cy  fo r  ac t ing  Judges o r  

Mag is t ra tes  do ing  ser ious cr ime,  I  wou ld  have to  mot iva te ,  

bu t  I  e lec ted  to  do  i t  p r i va te ly.   I t  wou ld  have been qu icker.  

The red  tape and bureaucracy beh ind  mot iva t ions  

fo r  a  jud ic ia l  o r  fo r  Mag is t ra tes  in  c i rcumstances where  

there  a re  no  po l i cy,  wou ld  have taken a  year.  10 

ADV MOLEFE :    A l r igh t ,  then you sa id  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  sa id  tha t  you had t ime,  Ms Mole fe ,  and 

you d id  no t  keep an eye on your  t ime.  You have exceeded.   

Do you want  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  I  want  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you want  to  wrap up?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes p lease,  thank  you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Mr  Na i r,  you ear l i e r  tes t i f ied  tha t  sa t  on  a  

commi t tee  in  wh ich  you wou ld  g i ve  your  op in ion  on  cer ta in  20 

mat te rs  re la t ing  to  a  dec is ion  tha t  had to  be  taken  and I  

unders tood th is  to  have been pa r t  and parce l  o f  you r  du ty.  

MR NAIR :    I  d id  no t  tes t i f y  tha t  I  sa t  on  a  commi t tee  

where in  I  had to  g ive  an  op in ion .   I  tes t i f ied  that  I  was  

invo l ved in  the  S teer  Co where  mat te rs  were  d i scussed and  
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consensus,  dec i s ion -mak ing  had  to  be  taken.   My ro le  

inso fa r  as  serv i ce  prov iders  was mere l y  to  p rov ide  an  

op in ion  to  the  Cour t  Manager  i f  he  asked and my v iews and 

fo r  suggest ions impacted on cour t  opera t ions.   I  d id  no t  s i t  

in  a  commi t tee  tha t ,  where in  I  had to  exp ress an  op in ion .  

When you a re  cha i r ing  meet ings i nvo lv ing  

s takeho lders  a t  a  cour t  you  take  consensus based 

dec is ions.   You w i l l  l i s ten  to  eve rybody ’s  input  and on ly  

once there  is  consensus do you take  a  dec is ion .   Indeed  

f rom t ime to  t ime the  Cour t  Manager  wou ld  approach me 10 

and ind ica te  tha t  there  is  a  p rob lem wi th  wate r  in  the  

bu i ld ing  and wou ld  ask  my op in ion ,  indeed par t i cu la r ly  

because o f  the  f i re  the  Cour t  Managers  or  the  Cour t  

Manager  wou ld  engage me o f ten  in  re la t ion  o r  w i th  regard  

to  the  opera t ions.  

ADV MOLEFE :    Okay,  bu t  in  essence you cou ld  g ive  an  

op in ion .  

MR NAIR :    Wel l ,  I  cou ld  g ive  an  op in ion  to  the  Cour t  

Manager  and I  cou ld  p rov ide  my op in ion  in  a  la rge  

gather ing  as  any Cha i rperson wou ld  a l so  prov ide  an  20 

op in ion ,  bu t  i t  wou ld  mere ly  be  an  op in ion .  

ADV MOLEFE :    And cou ld  your  op in ion  sway the  Cour t  

Manager  in  a  pa r t i cu la r  d i rec t ion?  

MR NAIR :    No,  the  Cour t  Manager  was not  bound by  my 

op in ion .    
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR NAIR :    He wou ld  come to  me and ask my v iew on  

someth ing  and I  wou ld  te l l  h im tha t  th is  i s  my v iew,  fo r  

example  i f  there  was a  quest ion  o f  access cont ro l  and 

tu rns t i les  or  i f  there  was a  quest ion  o f  a  number  o f  

por tab le  a i r  cond i t ioners  tha t  had to  be  a l loca ted  among a l l  

s takeho lders ,  i f  he  spoke to  me pr iva te ly  and sa id  to  me 

Mr  Na i r,  we have  got  40  and we need to  share  i t  ou t  and 

we have taken a  dec i s ion  a t  a  lower  leve l  where  your  

Sen io r  Mag is t ra te  cha i red  and th is  was the  ou tcome and 10 

what  i s  you r  v iew,  I  wou ld  g i ve  h im my op in ion .   He is  no t  

bound by  my op in ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR NAIR :    No Cour t  Manager  i s  bound by  any op in ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  Ms Mole fe?  

ADV MOLEFE :    So  have you made any d isc losu res  about  

the  equ ipment  tha t  was ins ta l led  a t  your  house? 

MR NAIR :    To  whom,  madam? 

ADV MOLEFE :    To  anybody in  the  Depar tment  o f  Jus t ice .  

MR NAIR :    No,  no ,  no ,  no .   Th is  was a  pr i va te  con t rac tua l  20 

agreement .  

ADV MOLEFE :    And what  i s  the  cur ren t  s ta tus  o f  your  

employment?  

MR NAIR :    I  am cur ren t ly  on  suspens ion  fo l low ing  

Mr  le  Roux ’s  tes t imony on the  31s t .  
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ADV MOLEFE :    From which  t ime have you been on  

suspens ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Mole fe ,  I  w i l l  s top  you there .  

ADV MOLEFE :    Okay.  

MR NAIR :    I t  i s  no t  fo r  the  Commiss ion  whether  he  is  on  

suspens ion  or  no t  and how long,  bu t  I  th ink  you have  

covered substant ia l l y  the  impor tan t  i ssues,  have you  not?  

ADV MOLEFE :    I  have.   My las t  quest ion  rea l l y  Cha i r,  was 

go ing  to  be  to  ask  Mr  Na i r  i f  the re  are  any o ther  fac tors  

tha t  he  w ishes to  b r ing  to  your  a t ten t ion  in  cons ide ra t ion  o f  10 

the  a l legat ions made aga ins t  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  Mr  Dor f l ing  i s  there ,  I  w i l l  ask  h im i f  

he  wants  to  re -examine.    

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Dor f l ing ,  i s  there  any re -exam inat ion  

you wou ld  l i ke  to  do?  

NO RE-EXAMINATION BY ADV DORFLING :    I  have got  no  

re-examinat ion ,  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .   Mr  Na i r?  

MR NAIR :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i s  there  someth ing  e lse  tha t  you 

wanted to  say tha t  you have not  been ab le  to  say?  

MR NAIR :    Thanks,  thanks Cha i r,  I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  add 

tha t  in  the  in te res t  o f  you get t ing  the  fu l l  p ic tu re  I  have  

d iscovered [ ind is t inc t ]  towards  Agr izz i ’s  s ta tement  
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annexures tha t  re la te  to  Mr  le  Roux dated 2017 and 2018 

wh ich  are  two a f f idav i t s  where in  he  se ts  ou t  the  spec ia l  

p ro jec t  benef ic ia r ies ,  e t  ce tera ,  and he makes no ment ion  

o f  me in  bo th  o f  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR NAIR :    And those were  made ava i lab le  to  your  

invest iga to rs  be fore  I  have ment ioned i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Yes,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Maybe 

jus t  to  make sure  tha t  when your  mat te r  i s  looked in to ,  tha t  

aspect  i s  no t  los t  s igh t  o f ,  maybe you cou ld  j us t  do  a  shor t  10 

a f f idav i t  where  you draw my a t ten t ion  to  tha t ,  you put  

annexures,  those  a f f idav i t s  o r  wha tever  documents  and you  

make the  po in t  tha t  you have jus t  made and then send i t  to  

the  Commiss ion  w i th ,  th rough your  lawyers  and Ms Mole fe 

wou ld  become aware  o f  i t  and then  we make sure  tha t  i t  is  

in  the  f i le  re la t ing  to  your  mat te r.  

MR NAIR :    Yes,  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV DORFLING :    Mr  Cha i r,  i f  I  may?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

ADV DORFLING :    Mr  Cha i r,  i f  I  may,  I  th ink  on  tha t  sco re  

Mr  Na i r  has a l ready d iscussed tha t  in  an  a f f idav i t  and 

perhaps we shou ld  jus t  aga in  focus the  Commiss ion ’s  

a t ten t ion  on  tha t  a f f idav i t  and dea l  w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  
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ADV DORFLING :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV DORFLING :    I  th ink  i t  w i l l ,  we jus t  need to  f ocus on  

tha t  aga in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no,  i f  i t  i s  a l ready the re  tha t  i s  

f ine ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   No,  thank you ve ry  much,  Mr  Dor f l ing .    

ADV MOLEFE :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much,  Mr  Na i r  and thank  

you Ms Mole fe .   I  know Ms Mole fe ,  you w i l l  remain  because  

we are  now go ing  to  dea l  w i th  the  ev idence,  the  re -10 

examinat ion  o f  Mr  Makwet la ,  bu t  Mr  Makwet la  and  Mr  Na i r  

a re  now excused.   Thank you very  much.  

ADV DORFLING :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.  

MR NAIR :    Thank you,  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  thank you.    

MR NAIR :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  about  

10  m inutes  o r  so  to  enab le  Mr  Makwet la  and h i s  counse l  to  

come in  and then I  w i l l  re tu rn  and then we cont inue.   We 

ad journ .  20 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning,  good morning.    

ADV MOSIKILI :   Morn ing.  

MR MAKWETLA:   Morn ing Chai r.   Morn ing everyone.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Thank you.   Thank you.   Our  ear l ier  

session took longer than we – I  thought  they would take but  

we – we are ready so le t  us have Mr Makwet la  – good 

morning Mr Makwet la .  

MR MAKWETLA:   Good morning Chai rperson – good 

morning.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning thank you for  avai l ing  

yoursel f .   I  w i l l  ask the Regist ra r  to  now admin iste r  the oath 

or  a ff i rmat ion.   Regist rar  wi l l  you do that  p lease? 

REGISTRAR:   Wi l l  you be tak ing the oath or  the 10 

aff i rmat ion? 

MR MAKWETLA:   The oath Ma’am.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease p lace your  fu l l  names fo r  the record.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   My fu l l  names are Thabang Samson 

Phathakge Makwet la .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  tak ing the  

prescr ibed oath? 

MR MAKWETLA:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you consider  the oath b ind ing  on your  

conscience? 20 

MR MAKWETLA:   Yes.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly swear that  the ev idence you 

wi l l  g ive wi l l  be the t ru th;  the who le t ru th and noth ing but  

the t ru th;  i f  so p lease ra ise your  r ight  hand and say,  so help 

me God.  
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MR MAKWETLA:   So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you – thank you very much Mr 

Makwet la .   I  see that  you share at  least  one name wi th  the 

Nat ional  Chai rperson of  your  par ty.   Okay.   No I  jus t  noted 

because obviously he has a lso appeared before me to g ive 

ev idence and he has g iven h is  fu l l  names.    

MR MAKWETLA:   Indeed Chai rperson,  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja you see when people have to  test i fy  

that  i s  when you get  to  know a l l  the i r  names.   Okay a l l  r ight .   

I  w i l l  le t  your  counsel  then ask you quest ions in  re-10 

examinat ion.   Just  for  the benef i t  o f  the publ i c  I  ment ion  

that  Mr Makwet la  d id  previously g ive ev idence before the  

commission and was quest ioned by the evidence leader of  

the commission but  what  was le f t  was h is  re -examinat ion by  

h is  counsel .   He was due to be re-examined on Thursday 

evening last  week but  we could not  get  to  h im because of  

the ear ly  cur few that  had to  be respected and that  i s  why he 

is  back today just  for  that  re-examinat ion which h is  counsel  

sa id might  take i f  I  recal l  cor rec t ly  about  twenty  or  so 

minutes or  is  i t  th i r ty  minutes? 20 

MR MAKWETLA:   Th i r t y  minutes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Th i r t y  minutes okay a l l  r ight .   Okay thank 

you.   You might  just  want  to  – to  p lace yoursel f  on  record 

f i rs t  again before you proceed.  

ADV MOSIKILI :  Thank you.   My name is  Tebogo Mosik i l i  on 
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behal f  o f  Mr Thabang Makwet la .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV MOSIKILI :   Chai r  we p lan on at  least  re-v is i t ing three 

top ics.   The f i rs t  top ic  we want  to  deal  wi th  the work that  

was done at  Mr Makwet la ’s  house.   Secondly we want  to  

deal  wi th  the Par l iamentary Report  and last l y  Mr Makwet la  

would l i ke to  d iscuss at  least  wi th  the commission the  

re la t ionship he shared br ie f l y  wi th  Mr – the la te Mr Gavin  

Watson.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes that  is  f ine but  as you put  quest ions 

to  h im just  do remember that  in  terms of  the Regulat ions of  

the Commission the purpose of  re-examinat ion is  to  c la r i fy  

issues that  might  not  have – that  might  need c la r i f icat ion.   

So I  ment ion that  just  to  say there should not  be a re -

v is i t ing of  any issue unless there is  someth ing to  be 

c la r i f ied.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes Chai r  I  –  I  thank you Chai r  for  that .   

Chai r  –  so the last  two top ics should take less than f ive 20 

minutes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Each.   ( Ind is t inct )  I  am focussing on 

Chai rperson is  the work done at  Mr  Makwet la .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV MOSIKILI :   And – and Chai r  we wi l l  be deal ing  wi th  the  

ev idence of  Mr Le Roux d i rect ly.   What  Mr Makwet la ’s  

compla ined of  is  that  as much as when he was g iven chance 

to at  least  to  lead h is  ev idence he was no affo rded an 

opportuni ty  to  deal  wi th  at  least  to  comment  on – on Mr Le  

Roux’s a l legat ions both in  h is  s tatements and in  h is  

test imony.   So we just  want  to  deal  wi th  that  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  i s  f ine.   That  i s  f ine.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   And – sa id that .   And more so  that  

remember  Chai rperson at  the end of  the day Mr Le Roux is  10 

the only  person who at  least  impl icates Mr Makwet la  to  the 

state capture Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  i s  f ine.   That  i s  f ine ja .  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes Chai r  le t  us get  onto i t  Chai rperson.   

We wi l l  s ta r t  deal ing wi th  the statement  by Mr Le Roux 

which is  T3 which – the statement  a lso concludes the  

inv i ta t ion to  Mr Makwet la  to  come to the commission and 

the reference is  RLR and we deal ing wi th  00 – at  page 009 

to 010 where in  he deals wi th  Mr Makwet la  in  three  

paragraphs Chai rperson.    20 

 At  paragraph 47 to  50 that  i s  where  Mr  Le Roux 

refers to  Mr Makwet la .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second.    

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The bundle we are us ing is  BOSASA 
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Bundle 3,  is  that  correct?   

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes Chai r  we … 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the bundle in  f ront  o f  me.   I t  is 

paginated – what  is  the paginated number that  should say 

BOSASA-03- someth ing – at  the b lack numbers on the top  

le f t  corner  of  each page.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes Chai r  we – we have that  but  r ight  now 

Chai r  we deal ing  wi th  – there i s  three bundles that  were 

g iven to  us.   I t  is  –  so what  is  ( ta lk ing over  one another ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes the one – the  one where you are –  the 10 

one you are sta r t ing wi th  that  is  the  one I  am looking for.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   The one I  am star t ing wi th  i t  is  T3 .   What  

the Chai rperson is  looking at  is  Exhib i t  T31.   We are  looking  

at  T3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Molefe are you able to  assis t  me.   I  do 

not  –   

ADV MOLEFE:   Thank you Chai r.   I t  is  a t  page 33 of  the  

bundle.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  the – of  Bundle 3.  

ADV MOLEFE:   Yes and par t icu la r  my learned col league is  20 

referr ing you to  paragraph 47 a l l  the way to  49.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Page 33 is  par t  o f  Mr Fro l i ck ’s  

s tatement ,  is  that  what  he is  ta lk ing about?  

ADV MOLEFE:   No.   The bundle  number BOSASA 05 the 

p lace –  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no that  is  a  d i f ferent  one.   I  have got  

Bundle 03 – BOSASA Bundle 03 that  is  the bundle that  was 

p laced before me.   So i t  should be Bundle – BOSASA 

Bundle – Bundle BOSASA 5.  

ADV MOLEFE:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  have got  i t  and what  is  the page 

number – is  i t  33? 

ADV MOLEFE:   Yes Chai r  page 33 at  paragraph 47 to  49.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay I  have got  i t .  

ADV MOLEFE:   Yes.  10 

ADV MOSIKILI :   Sor ry Chai r  we were g iven three document  

vo lumes so we have got  T3,  T31 and T21.  And… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Look at  the – a t  the sp ine they should  

have someth ing  wr i t ten BOSASA Bundle  05,  BOSASA 

Bundle 03 so when you make a reference i t  is  bet ter  to  s ta r t  

by te l l ing me wh ich bundle and then you can te l l  me the  

exhib i t  number.  But  actual l y  most  of  the t ime I  do not  want  

the exhib i t  number because i t  gets confusing.   I f  you te l l  me 

the bundle and then you te l l  me the page at  the top le f t  

hand corner,  the b lack numbers that  takes me to the  page.  20 

ADV MOSIKILI :   Noted Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.   So I  am at  page 33 of  Bundle –  

BOSASA Bundle 5.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes Chai r  we – we deal ing wi th  the three 

paragraphs there.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   And then – and that  is  the Mr Le  Roux’s 

aff idavi t  that  s tar ts  at  page 25.  Okay.   You can cont inue.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Mr Makwet la  are you okay wi th  tha t? 

MR MAKWETLA:   I  thought  I  was okay and le t  me just  

conf i rm the document  you are refer r ing to  is  Mr Richard Le 

Roux’s aff idavi t  is  i t  not?  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes.   This  is  the  f i rs t  one that  was referred 

to .   I  th ink your  copy is  l ike mine –  i t  should say RLR009.  

MR MAKWETLA:   Yes.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   The page number.   Yes.  10 

MR MAKWETLA:   Yes and on page 9 paragraph 47 to  49  

you were saying.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   That  is  the one we are referr ing to  yes.  

MR MAKWETLA:   Yes I  am wi th you.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Thank you.   Now Chai rperson wi thout  

wast ing  the t ime of  reading what  i s  sa id there  but  basica l ly  

what  Mr Le Roux is  ta lk ing about  is  the work that  he  

at tended to do at  Mr Makwet la ’s  house and at  paragraph 48 

he sa id:  

“ I  a t tended to the fo l lowing work.   20 

Maintenance was done on the e lec t r ic  fence 

and a larm systems af te r  the insta l la t ion. ”  

And then on the next  page he says:  

“Ful l  e lect r i c  fence,  a larm system new,  IP 

CCTV camera system,  Cata6 server  offs i te  
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moni to r ing capabi l i t ies. ”  

And then on paragraph 49 he says:  

“A l l  o f  that  i s  the to ta l  va lue of  

approximate ly  R350 000.00. ”  

Now Mr Makwet la  before – before I  ask for  your  comment  on  

that  can you just  maybe ref resh the Chai r  and the 

commission as to  what  k ind of  work  d id you need to be done 

at  your  – at  your  house? 

MR MAKWETLA:   The work that  I  asked for  to  be done at  

my house were two th ings.   F i rs t  i t  was the insta l la t ion of  10 

the e lect r i c  fence and secondly i t  was the repai rs  to  the  

a la rm system which  got  damaged when renovat ions were  

done to the house.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Thank you.   Now my second quest ion is ,  

have you ever  d iscussed wi th  Mr Le Roux at  any point  a t  

least  before th is  – before he v is i ted your  house as to  what  

needed to be done at  your  proper ty?  

MR MAKWETLA:   No I  have not  had any d iscussions wi th  

Mr Le Roux regard ing th is  job.   The person that  I  spoke to 

is  Mr Gavin Watson.   Mr Le Roux my understanding was 20 

that  he was not  just  a  technic ian who executed the  job but  

he was the leader  of  the team of  th ree people that  he was – 

that  was in  charge of  the job.    

 So I  on ly  met  h im on I  th ink two occasions and very  

br ie f ly  as they were work ing on s i te .   Chai r  I  do not  know i f  
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… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja.   Counsel  fo r  Mr Makwet la  

unmute yoursel f  or  someth ing l ike  that .   You seem to have 

d isappeared.   I  th ink he cannot  hear  us.   Let  us wai t  and 

see whether  he comes on-board.   There is  someth ing that  

says connect ing.   Regist ra r.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Maybe Chai r  –  oh .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh there he comes back.   Okay – oh then 

he d isappears.   Okay are you back? 

ADV MOSIKILI :   Apologies for  that  Chai r.   As i t  were  10 

( ind is t inct )  le t  me down I  just  co l lapsed and d isappeared 

Chai r.   I  apologise.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   But  you d id hear  Mr 

Makwet la ’s  response? 

ADV MOSIKILI :   Indeed so Chai rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes to  what  he had actual l y  needed to say 

and I  th ink he d id  refer  that  he wanted an e lect r ic  fence and 

a repai r  to  h is  a larm system which was damaged due to  

some renovat ions that  were happening at  h is  –  at  h is  20 

proper ty  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  th ink he sa id he met  Mr Le Roux 

once or  twice whi le  they were doing work in  h is  house but  

the person that  he used to deal  wi th  was Mr Watson in  

regard to  the mat ter.   Okay you can cont inue.   I t  looks  l ike  
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there are technica l  chal lenges.   Can everyone hear me? 

ADV MOLEFE:   Yes Chai r.  

MR MAKWETLA:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Let  us cont inue.   Oh counsel  fo r  

Mr Makwet la  I  am to ld that  you need to unmute yoursel f .  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Can I  be heard Chai r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now we can hear  you ja .  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Thank you so much apologies for  that  

Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight .   Le t  us cont inue.  10 

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes.   Chai r  I  w i l l  l i ke to  refer  you to  a 

test imony of  Mr  Le Roux as to  what  he sa id when he 

appeared before you in  regard to  Mr Makwet la .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   I  re fer  you to  day 44 Chai rperson of  the  

commission and i t  is  on the 31s t  o f  January 2019.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  that  t ranscr ip t  in  th is  bundle or  not?  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Chai rperson we have been g iven th is  as 

par t  o f  the – i t  was at tached to the statement  by  Mr Le 

Roux.  20 

ADV MOLEFE:   :   Chai r  the –  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Ms Molefe.  

ADV MOLEFE:   The t ranscr ip t  is  not  in  – in  the bundle.   I  

th ink my learned f r iend is  re fer r ing to  i t  because i t  was 

at tached to a Rule 3.3 Not ice.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.   Okay that  is  f ine then.   He can go 

ahead.  

ADV MOLEFE:   Thank you.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Chai r  because we are going to  refer  to  i t  a t  

length we wi l l  need you to  at  leas t  fo l low us.   I  am not  too 

sure i f  Chai r  can fo l low us.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  w i l l  –  I  can fo l low.   I  w i l l  l i s ten.   I  

w i l l  see i f  i t  becomes necessary that  I  get  a  copy but  I  th ink  

you can proceed.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Thank you Chai r.   Mr Makwet la  can you 10 

turn to  page 115 of  the sa id t ranscr ip t .    

MR MAKWETLA:   Yes I  am there.    

ADV MOSIKILI :   For  ease of  re ference yes the one that  is  

a t tached to the Rule – the not ice in  te rms of  Rule 3 .3.   Yes.   

You wi l l  see there  r ight  on top where Mr Le Roux answers –  

wel l  –  at  least  Ms Molefe f i rs t  dea ls wi th  paragraph 47,  49  

which we have just  read and most  important ly  Mr Le Roux 

says the proper ty  belongs to  Mr  Makwet la  and then Mr – Ms 

Molefe asked i f  he knows the posi t ion that  he would hold.   

And Mr Le Roux responds to  say that  he does not  or  he d id 20 

not  know at  that  po int  what  posi t ion you held.   And then 

important ly  he is  asked by Counsel  Molefe,  can you recal l  

when th is  pro jec t  was undertaken?  Can you fo l low Mr  

Makwet la?  

MR MAKWETLA:   Yes I  can fo l low.   I  can fo l low.  
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ADV MOSIKILI :   Thank you.   And then you wi l l  see that  Mr 

responds to  say to  the Chai r  that  I  cannot  recal l  the dates 

or  the months  that  on the quest ion that  he is  be ing asked 

and a lso he is  be ing asked to whose inst ruct ions was th is  

pro ject  undertaken?  And he answers there that  i t  was done 

on the inst ruct ions of  Mr Gavin Watson d i rect l y.  

 Now the quest ion  that  I  want  to  ask you is  that  d id  

you know Mr Le Roux d i rect l y  before coming to  your  house? 

MR MAKWETLA:   No I  d id  not  know Chai rperson Mr Le 

Roux before he came to my house at  a l l  and maybe whi ls t  10 

st i l l  a t  that  po int  I  want  to  just  f lag th is  to  the commission  

and to the Chai rperson of  the commission that  in  h is  own 

admission Mr Le  Roux d id actual l y  not  know where I  was 

work ing,  what  posi t ion I  was hold ing where I  was work ing.   

Not  on ly at  the t ime when he executed the job but  even at  

the t ime when he appeared before  the commission he st i l l  

was not  sure of  th is  person ca l led  Mr Makwet la  tha t  he had 

come to the commission to  tes t i fy  against  that  he is  

involved in  s tate capture.   He is  involved possib ly  in  

corrupt ion.   He is  involved possib ly  in  f raudulent  ac t iv i t ies.   20 

He d id not  – the Chai r  even asked h im fo l lowing up on the  

quest ion that  was asked by Advocate Molefe to  conf i rm in… 

ADV MOSIKILI :   ( Inaudable)  We wi l l  get  there.  

MR MAKWETLA:   Sorry.    

ADV MOSIKILI :   We wi l l  get  there  yes – we wi l l  ge t  there.   
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Perhaps what  you should do then – sorry to  in ter ject .   On 

page 117 of  the same t ranscr ip t .  

MR MAKWETLA:   Yes.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes th is  i s  what  you are refer r ing to  when 

the Chai rperson asked very speci f i c  quest ion.   The 

Chai rperson says:  

“Do not  –  I  mean what  was wrong?  What  

needed to be done that  i s  what  I  want  to  

know?”  

At  the bot tom of  the page.   Do you see that?  10 

MR MAKWETLA:   Ja.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   A t  page 117.  

MR MAKWETLA:   No Mr Mosik i l i  I  –  and Chai rperson my 

apology I  am actual l y  looking at  a  d i f fe rent  t ranscr ip t  

because the – the  pages that  you are… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA:   Referr ing to  do  not  ta l l y  wi th  the one I  

have before me.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Okay what  does your  page say at  the 

bot tom? 20 

MR MAKWETLA:   My page at  the bot tom is  page 95 of  144 

and th is  is  a  t ranscr ip t  o f  Day 44 of  the Commission.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes i t  is  the same t ranscr ip t  we looking at .    

MR MAKWETLA:   Yes.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Wi th the d i f ferent  number ing.   Let  me see 
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i f  I  can f ind fo r  ease of  re ference for  you.   I t  is  f ine Mr 

Makwet la  I  wi l l  –  Chai rperson we seem to have two 

t ranscr ip ts  wi th  d i f ferent  number ing.   I  am t ry ing to  f igure 

out  how to assis t  Mr Makwet la  to  fo l low me.   Can Chai r  bear  

wi th  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No that  i s  f ine.   Or maybe do you want  me 

to adjourn for  ten minutes and you can t ry  and sor t  i t  out  

and then I  wi l l  come back.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then i f  need to be in  touch wi th  Ms 10 

Molefe you can be in  touch i f  she can assis t  but  tha t  – then 

ten minutes could  a lso be used Ms Molefe i f  i t  is  possib le  to  

see whether  that  t ranscr ip t  can be obta ined and be emai led 

to  my Regist ra r  here.  

ADV MOLEFE:   Indeed Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i f  there i s  a  delay we are not  go ing to  

be delayed by i t s  absence.   I  shou ld be able to  fo l low.   But  

le t  us take a ten minutes adjournment .    

ADV MOSIKILI :   We are indebted Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja adjourn for  ten  minutes.   .  20 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Can everybody hear  me? 

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   We have reso lved the  

number ing  d i f fe rences in  the  t ranscr ip t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Jus t  to  rev i s i t  the  quest ion  tha t  you were  

answer ing  Mr  Makwet la  I  asked you w i th  re ference to  the 

t ranscr ip t  was tha t :   Have you met  Mr  Le  Roux pr io r  to  h im  

coming to  your  house or  d id  you know h im in  any fo rm or  

manner?    

MR MAKWETLA :    Yes,  I  have exp la ined is  tha t  Mr  Le  Roux  10 

is  a  person I  go t  to  know when he was go ing  th rough the  

job  he  was ass igned to  do  a t  my p lace.   And as  I  have  

sa id .   I  th ink  I  have met  h im tw ice  or  so  as  in  tha t  

ins ta l la t ion  and  once a f te r  the  ins ta l la t ion  and the  

equ ipment  was not  funct ion ing  we l l .   I  have not  met  h im 

ever  s ince .   I  have not  met  h im before .    

 And as  I  was say ing .   I t  i s  there  in  the  t ranscr ip t  o f  

h is  ev idence  tha t  in  h is  admiss ion ,  to  h is  best  reco l l ec t ion ,  

he  d id  no t  know me a t  the  t ime he executed the  job ,  nor  

d id  he  know me when he was  appear ing  be fo re  the  20 

Commiss ion .   He had a  susp ic ion  tha t  I  am a  Deputy  

Min is te r  a t  the  Depar tment  o f  Cor rec t iona l  Serv i ces  when  

he was appear ing  be fore  the  Commiss ion .    

 And when the  Cha i r  t r ied  to  ge t  cer ta in ty  o f  what  

he  ac tua l l y  reco l lec ted ,  what  h is  reco l lec t ion  was,  he  
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emphas ised to  say he  d id  no t  want  to  commi t  h imse l f  to  

someth ing  he  cou ld  no t  vouch fo r.   He d id  no t  know where  I  

worked,  what  pos i t ion  I  had.   Now,  I  may jus t  a t  th is  po in t ,  

w i th  your  indu lgence.    

 That  th is  th ing  has a lways rea l l y  pa ined me.   That  

I  am here  be fore  the  Commiss ion  because o f  Mr Le  Roux.   

And th is  Commiss ion  is  a  Commiss ion  tha t  dea ls  w i th  s ta te  

capture .   I t  i s  a  Commiss ion  tha t  dea ls  w i th  cor rup t ion .   I s  

a  Commiss ion  tha t  dea ls  w i th  f raud in  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  The  

person who says I  am gu i l t y  o f  those th ings does not  even  10 

know where  I  worked a t ,  even as  he  was appear ing  be fore  

the  Commiss ion .    

 What  I  am t ry ing  to  make the  Commiss ion  

apprec ia te  tha t  th is  i s ,  you know,  the  most ,  you know,  

funny o f  cases I  have eve r  come across.   Of  such ser ious 

a l legat ions aga ins t  a  person you do not  even know where  

he  works .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  know Mr  Makwet la  

whethe r  i t  i s  accura te  to  say tha t  Mr  Le  Roux says you are  

gu i l t y  o f  cer ta in  th ings.   I  doubt  tha t  he  goes tha t  fa r.   You 20 

w i l l  be  aware  tha t  he  has g iven ev idence w i th  regard  to  the 

ins ta l la t ion  o f  secur i t y  equ ipment  a t  var ious  peop les  

homes.    

 My reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  h is  a t t i tude in  ev idence is  

usua l l y  tha t :   Look,  I  am a  techn ic ian .   I  ge t  ins t ruc ted  to  –  
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I  used to  ge t  ins t ruc ted  to  go  and ins ta l l  a t  somebody.   

Ins ta l l  secur i t y  sys tem a t  somebody ’s  house.   I  wou ld  no t  

know tha t  person .   Somet imes he  wou ld  say:   I  was to ld  

tha t  we must  no t  ask  too  many quest ion .    

 For  example .   I  th ink  in  regard  to  the  work  tha t  he  

and h is  team or  t he  peop le  tha t  they go t  in  touch w i th ,  i f  I  

am not  m is taken  w i th  Ms Mokonyane ’s  home.   I  th ink  he  

sa id  tha t  when they went  there ,  a t  leas t ,  maybe,  fo r  the  

f i rs t  t ime,  he  d id  no t  know whose  house i t  was.   And they 

had been ins t ruc ted  not  to  ask  too  many quest ions,  I  th ink ,  10 

about  the  owner  and so  on .    

 So,  I  am jus t  say ing  to  be  fa i r  to  h im.   I  do  no t  

know whether  you were  a t t r ibu t ing  s ta tements  to  h im 

s ta tements  tha t  he  says you are  gu i l t y  o f  someth ing  

because you have seen h is  ev idence where  he  says tha t ,  

o r  whethe r  you assumed tha t  he  was say ing  tha t  because 

my susp ic ion  is ,  tha t  a l l  he  was say ing  is ,  he  go t  

ins t ruc t ions to  go  and ins ta l l  the  equ ipment  in  your  house.   

That  i s  what  he  d id .   

MR MAKWETLA :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  you are  cor rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MAKWETLA :    You are  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MAKWETLA :    And i t  i s  what  I  am not  unders tand ing  

because no one has come before  the  Commiss ion  mak ing  
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a l legat ions o f  my  invo lvement  in  s ta te  capture ,  cor rup t ion ,  

o r  f raud.   No one.   The on ly  reason I  am before  the  

Commiss ion  is  because a  techn ic ian  who was head o f  the  

team tha t  ins ta l led  secur i t y  fea tures  I  asked o r,  came here  

to  say I  am among the  peop le  who  the  a l legat ions made is  

tha t  they are  invo lved in  s ta te  capture .    

 I  do  unders tand  your  po in t  tha t  i t  i s  no t  in  h is  

ev idence,  bu t  i t  is  no t  in  h is  ev idence tha t  I  am invo lved in  

s ta te  captu re .   But  there  is  no  o ther  person who says I  am 

invo lved in  s ta te  capture .    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  we l l ,  th is  i s  the  contex t ,  Mr   

Makwet la ,  and you shou ld  remember  i t .   You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  

Mr  Agr i zz i  gave w ide- rang ing  ev idence and some o f f i c ia ls  

connected w i th  BOSASA inc lud ing  Mr  R ichard  le  Roux and 

o thers .   But  Mr  Agr izz i  gave w ide- rang ing  ev idence wh ich  

inc luded a l legat ions o f  co r rup t ion  be tween –  in  dea l i ng  tha t  

BOSASA had w i th  the  Depar tment  o f  Cor rec t iona l  Serv i ces ,  

o r  le t  me say,  w i th  the  s ta te  or  some government  

depar tments ,  bu t  par t i cu la r ly  w i th  the  Depar tment  o f  

Cor rec t iona l  Serv ices .    20 

 He went  to  town  about  cont rac ts ,  how they were  

ob ta ined.   Inc lud ing ,  in  some case where  he  sa id  

somebody w i th in  the  Depar tment  o f  Cor rec t iona l  Serv ices ,  I  

fo rge t  h is  name now,  an  o f f i c ia l ,  was in  contac t  w i th  

somebody a t  BOSASA or  maybe i t  was Mr Agr izz i  h imse l f ,  
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where  the  ar rangement  was tha t  BOSASA shou ld  fo rmula te  

the  spec i f i ca t ion  tha t  shou ld  go  to  the  tender  documents  

fo r  some work  tha t  was go ing  to  be  adver t i sed and tenders  

were  go ing  to  be  inv i ted .    

 And obv ious l y,  BOSASA wou ld  fo rmula te  the  

spec i f i ca t ion  in  such a  way tha t  i t  su i ted  them and i f  

poss ib le  t ry  and  e l im ina te  compet i t ion .   So,  what  wou ld  

happen in  due course  i s ,  there fore ,  i s  tha t ,  a f te r  BOSASA 

had done tha t ,  the  depar tment  and  th is  o f f i c ia l  wou ld  make  

sure  tha t  when the  tender  documents  go  out  to  inv i te  b ids ,  10 

they wou ld  go  out  w i th  th is  spec i f i ca t ion  tha t  has been 

fo rmula ted  by  an  ent i t y  tha t  i t  a lso  go ing  to  pu t  in  a  b id .   

That  i s ,  obv ious ly,  i r regu la r,  and unacceptab le .   So.    

 And you w i l l  a lso  reca l l ,  and tha t  i s  someth ing  tha t  

I  have sa id  pub l i c ly  du r ing  hear ings o f  the  Commiss ion ,  bu t  

I  was concerned a lso  about  the  fac t  tha t  BOSASA 

cont inued over  many years  to  ge t  cont rac ts  f rom the  s ta te  

desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  there  were  lo ts  o f  a l lega t ions o f  

cor rup t ion  tha t  were  assoc ia ted  w i th  BOSASA and the  

Depar tment  o f  Cor rec t iona l  Serv i ces ,  bu t  they cont inued to  20 

ge t  cont rac ts  and  cont rac ts  go t  ex tended.    

 So,  obv ious ly,  w i th  the  ev idence  tha t  had been  

p laced before  the  Commiss ion ,  i t  was impor tan t  tha t  the  

Commiss ion ,  whe ther  the re  was somebody who says Mr  

Makwet la  i s  invo l ved in  cor rup t ion  or  no t .   I t  was impor tan t  



5 JULY 2021 – DAY 421 
 

Page 71 of 110 
 

fo r  the  Commiss ion  to  say:   Which  o f f i c ia l s  o r  pos i t ions  

w i th in  government  go t  benef i t s  f rom BOSASA?  Under  what  

c i rcumstances d id  they ge t  them?  That  i s  where  somebody 

l i ke  you comes in .    

 So,  in  o ther  words.   There  m ight  no t  be  an  

ind iv idua l  who says:   Mr  Makwet la  was invo lved in  

cor rup t ion  or  Mr  Makwet la  was invo lved in  s ta te  capture ,  

bu t  because o f  the  ev idence tha t  has been p laced befo re  

the  Commiss ion  re la t ing  to  BOSASA and the  s ta te  and in  

par t i cu la r  Depar tment  o f  Cor rec t iona l  Serv ices ,  i t  became 10 

necessary  to  say :   Le t  us  t ry  and  es tab l i sh  a l l  the  pub l i c  

f igures  who may  have had bene f i t s  f rom BOSASA and 

enqu i re  as  to  what  were  the  c i r cumstances under  wh ich  

they go t  those benef i t s .   D id  they  p lay  fo r  those benef i t s?   

And so  on .    

 And w i th  you hav ing  been a t  the  t ime Deputy  

Min is te r  o f  Cor rec t iona l  Serv ices ,  i t  became even more  

impor tan t  to  say th is  i s  a  deputy  m in i s te r  in  th is  

depar tment  where  there  have been a  lo t  o f  a l legat ions o f  

cor rup t ion  invo l v ing  BOSASA and th is  depar tment .   But  you  20 

can a lso  th ink  o f  Mr  Mantashe.    

 He got  –  he  was not  even in  government  a t  the  

t ime,  bu t  he  has  been asked to  come and tes t i f y  because 

Mr  Agr i zz i  and some o f f i c ia l s  o f  BOSASA tes t i f ied  tha t  he 

go t  some benef i t s  where  he  ins ta l led  secur i t y  equ ipment  a t  
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h is  homes.    

 So,  the  Commiss ion  had to  enqu i re  what  were  the  

c i rcumstances and when a l l  the  ev idence is  been g iven  

inc lud ing  your  ev idence,  then the  Commiss ion  can make  

f ind ings.   Was th i s  an  innocuous ar rangements?   Was there  

someth ing  un toward?  But  tha t  i s  the  c i r cumstances .    

 So,  you get  b rought  because the  Commiss ion  

wants  to  know.   Who got  benef i t s  f rom BOSASA?  Under  

what  c i rcumstances?  I s  there  someth ing  un toward  or  no t?  

You unders tand tha t?  10 

MR MAKWETLA :    I  unders tand,  Cha i rperson.   Cha i rpe rson  

is  cor rec t .   So cor rec t .   The events  or  the  prob lems tha t  

Cha i r  i s  re fe r r i ng  to  a re  indeed a  sub jec t  o f  the  S IU repor t  

wh ich  was compi led  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MAKWETLA :    . . .aga ins t  the  Depar tment  o f  

Cor rec t iona l  Serv ices .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MAKWETLA :    That  repor t  was compi led  in  2009.   

Those –  the  issues tha t  the  Cha i r  i s  re fe r r ing  to  happened  20 

years  be fore  I  went  to  tha t  depar tment .   I  on ly  was  

appo in ted  to  the  Min i s t ry  o f  Jus t ice  and Correc t iona l  

Serv i ces  in  2014.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MAKWETLA :    The mat te rs  tha t  the  Cha i r  i s  re fe r r i ng  
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to ,  as  the  Cha i r  wou ld  know,  a re  ac tua l l y  be fore  t he  cour t  

in  another  case,  where  the  peop le  who were  invo lved in  

those th ings are  ac tua l l y  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MAKWETLA :    So,  my po in t  i s .   My –  ac tua l l y,  th is  what  

we a re  ta lk ing  about ,  Cha i r,  i s  a  re levant  fac to r  because I  

approached the  Min i s te r  o f  Jus t ice  and Cor rec t iona l  

Serv i ces  to  say the  m in is t r y  must  take  respons ib i l i t y  fo r  the  

lega l  fees tha t  I  have to  pay fo r  appear ing  a t  th is  

Commiss ion  because the  unders tand ing  is  tha t  the  on ly  10 

reason why I  am appear ing  he re ,  i t  i s  because I  was a  

Deputy  Min is te r  t here ,  bu t  there  i s  no th ing  e l se .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MAKWETLA :    And the  Min i s te r  dec ided to  be  caut ious 

about  i t .   Dec ided not  to  come to  my appea l (? ) .   I t  i s  f ine ,  

bu t  as  you can see –  as  you can see fo r  you rse l f ,  Cha i r,  I  

am actua l l y  caught  up  in  someth ing  tha t  has go t  no th ing  to  

do  w i th  me.   Abso lu te ly  no th ing  to  do  w i th  me .   And 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr  Makwet la ,  do  no t  go  tha t  fa r.   20 

Do not  go  tha t  fa r.   I  am not  sure  tha t  i t  has  go t  no th ing  to  

do  w i th  you because the  mere  fac t  –  the  po in t  you are  

mak ing ,  and you  w i l l  remember  t ha t  th is  was someth ing  

tha t  was ra ised when you gave ev idence prev ious l y.   The  

fac t  tha t  i t  may have been 2014 when you became Deputy  
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Min is te r  and I  th ink  th is  appo in tment  happened in  2016.   I f  

am not  m is taken.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MAKWETLA :    2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    2015.  

MR MAKWETLA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The fac t  tha t  BOSASA’s  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

the  Depar tment  o f  Cor rec t iona l  Serv ices  had been go ing  on  

fo r  a  long t ime.   Wi th  a l l  the  a l legat ions o f  cor rup t i on  be ing  

in  the  pub l i c  domain ,  bu t  s t i l l  i n  2016 i t  was s t i l l  hav ing  

cont rac ts  w i th  Cor rec t iona l  Serv ices  and w i th  the  s ta te ,  10 

ac tua l l y,  makes th is  –  ca l l s  fo r  more  p rob ing  to  say:   But  

you be ing  Deputy  Min is te r  o f  th is  depar tment ,  how cou ld  

you ask  th is  same company about  wh ich  there  is  so  much  

ta lk  o f  co r rup t ion  w i th  your  depar tment?   How cou ld  you 

ask  tha t  company  to  have anyth ing  to  do  in  your  house?   

 So,  tha t  quest ion ,  as  you w i l l  reca l l ,  i t  was ra ised  

and  you d id  dea l  w i th  i t .   Bu t  I  am say ing ,  i t  i s  a  quest ion  

tha t  I  th ink  i s  leg i t imate ,  bu t  the  ev idence must  be  we ighed 

when a l l  the  ev idence is  in  because my understand ing  is  

tha t  the  s ta te  on ly  te rm inated agreements  w i th  BOSASA 20 

a f te r  these th ings had been exposed in  the  Commiss ion ,  

you know.    

 Because then there  was the  quest ion :   How can  

the  s ta te  cont inue?  What  i s  go ing  on?  Why is  there -  why  

was BOSASA not  b lack l i s ted  a l l  a long?  Why d id  i t  con t inue 
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to  have,  you know,  these cont rac ts?   I s  tha t  because i t  has  

connect ions w i th  po l i t i c ians?  Is  tha t  because  i t  has  

connect ion  w i th  h igh- rank ing  o f f i c ia ls?    

 So,  those are  the  k inds o f  quest ions tha t  the  pub l i c  

wou ld  be  ask ing  and those a re  the  k ind  o f  quest ions tha t  

the  Commiss ion  wou ld  be  bound to  ask .   And i f  i t  d id  no t  

look  in to  them,  i t  wou ld  be  unfa i r.   And i t  i s  in  your  own 

in te res t  and in  the  in te res t  o f  o ther  government  o f f i c ia ls  

tha t  the  Commiss ion  is  ab le  to  make f ind ings.    

 And i f  there  was noth ing  wrong,  c lear  the  a i r  once  10 

and fo r  a l l ,  you  know.   And i t  cannot  do  tha t  w i thout  

l i s ten ing  to  ev idence fo rm everybody concerned.    

ADV MOSIKILI :    Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you unders tand?  

ADV MOSIKILI :    I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .   I  jus t  though t  I  must  

exp la in  th is  because Mr  Makwet la  was tak ing  a  pos i t ion  

tha t  seems to  be  say ing :   I  do  no t  know what  the  

Commiss ion  wan ts  f rom me because I  am rea l l y  no t  

invo l ved he re .   So,  I  thought  I  mus t  c la r i f y  th is .  20 

ADV MOSIKILI :    Okay . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

MR MAKWETLA :    I  have got  i t .   I  accept  the  exp lanat ion  

the  Cha i r  has prov ided.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    And indeed,  those mat te rs  were  

canvassed . . . [ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    . . .dur ing  my f i rs t  appearance before  the  

Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    And I  do  no t  th ink  we shou ld  go  back  

there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Go back,  ja .  10 

MR MAKWETLA :    I  th ink  the  contex t  i s  apprec ia ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR MAKWETLA :    And to  tha t ,  I  want  to  jus t  d raw the  

a t ten t ion  o f  the  Commiss ion  to  the  s ta tement ,  Cha i r,  tha t  I  

made immedia te l y  when these a l legat ions appeared  aga ins t  

me in  the  med ia .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MAKWETLA :    I  sa id  the  fo l low ing,  Cha i r.   And I  have 

got  the  s ta tement  in  f ron t  o f  me.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR MAKWETLA :    That  I  do  no t  know why the  job  a t  my 

p lace has been a  sub jec t  o f  a  conf ident ia l  d iscuss ion  by  

any person in  BOSASA,  the i r  employees or  managers .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MAKWETLA :    Any suggest ion  tha t  th is  job  was t rea ted  
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d i f fe ren t ly  concerns me.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MAKWETLA :    Any member  o f  BOSASA who seeks to  

use my name to  lend credence –  to  the i r  came in  the  

in te rna l  feud a t  th is  company w i l l  in  the  end be exposed fo r  

the i r  uneth ica l  p rac t ises  and . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   I  was so 

concerned tha t  i t  appears  he re  tha t  there  i s  a  –  t here  i s  

someth ing  ve ry  s in is te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MAKWETLA :    Because I  jus t  cou ld  no t  make the  10 

connect ion  w i th  what  was be ing  sa id  about  th is  hav ing  

been a  conf ident ia l  i ssue.   And i t  i s  c lear  now f rom the  

a f f idav i t  by  Mr  Le  Roux tha t  when they were  coming  to my 

house they even had to  remov ing  by  bounce,  i f  I  –  excuse  

tha t  express ion .   That  i s  a  m i l i ta ry. . .   That  they had to  be  

cover ing  up  the i r  approach to  my house.   S top  a t  the  

garage,  change c lo thes.   I  mean,  tha t  i s  –  those are  c razy  

th ings tha t  I  never  even thought  tha t  th is  k ind  o f  co rpo ra te  

company cou ld  be  invo l ved in .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  20 

MR MAKWETLA :    Bu t  I  went  fur ther  to  say.   I  w ish  to  

assu re  everyone tha t  I  am not  gu i l t y  o f  any wrongdo ing  in  

the  en t i re  per iod  tha t  I  had been Deputy  Min is te r  a t  

Cor rec t iona l  Serv ices .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  
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MR MAKWETLA :    I  have not  sought  to  communica te  or  

in f luence,  no t  once,  any o f  the  depar tment ’s  o f f i c i a ls  who 

served on the  s t ruc tu re  o f  the  Depar tment  o f  Cor rec t iona l  

Serv i ces  Supp ly  Cha in  env i ronment .   To  ensure  tha t  the  

in te res t  o f  the  b roader  pub l i c  a re  pro tec ted  a t  a l l  t imes,  I  

under take to  approach the  Off i ce  o f  the  Pub l i c  Pro tec to r  to  

invest iga te  a l l  tenders  i ssued to  BOSASA a t  any –  or  any 

o ther  b ig  en te rpr i se  dur ing  my te rm as the  Min i s te r.  

 And to  in te rv iew a l l  the  o f f i c ia ls  who were  invo lved  

in  ad jud ica t ing  these tenders ,  as  to  whether  they ever  had  10 

any ind i v idua l  d i scuss ion  o f  the i r  work  w i th  me a t  any t ime 

dur ing  these processes.   I  make th is  as  a  pub l i c  s ta tement  

and i t  was my in ten t ion  to  approach the  Pub l ic  Pro tec to r  to  

ac tua l l y  sa t is f y  the  pub l i c  tha t  these a l legat ions a re  rea l l y  

spurs  a l legat ions.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Yes.  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Before (?)  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :    Okay.    

ADV MOSIKILI :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Can we jus t  ge t  back  

because I  am wor r ied  about  the  t ime?  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Jus t  two issues tha t  I  le f t  on  th is  top ic .   

Mr  Makwet la ,  you w i l l  see  there  on  page 97 on the  

t ranscr ip t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :    Yes.  
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ADV MOSIKILI :    . . .where  the  Cha i rpe rson  asked  

Mr  Le  Roux when  he had to  be  done a t  you r  p roper ty.  

MR MAKWETLA :    Yes.  

ADV MOSIKILI :    And I  want  to  ask  you a  d i rec t  quest ion .   

D id  you request  any o f  these th ings tha t  Mr  Le  Roux  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :    That  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MOSIKILI :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

MR MAKWETLA :    No,  as  I  sa id  be fore .   A l l  o f  these o ther  10 

th ings,  I  have never  requested them.    

ADV MOSIKILI :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    I  requested  two th ings.   One,  the  

e lec t r i c  fence wh ich  was –  wh ich  I  d id  no t  have tha t  even  

ins ta l led .   Two,  tha t  my a la rm sys tem,  wh ich  was damaged,  

shou ld  be  repa i red .   Those are  the  se rv i ces  I  asked fo r.   

The res t  o f  the  o ther  th ings I  have not  asked fo r  tha t .  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Do you have any idea where  Mr Le  Roux 

cou ld  have taken these th ings f rom? 

MR MAKWETLA :    No,  i t  i s  c lear  in  the  a f f idav i t  o f  20 

Mr  Le  Roux.   He was g iven th is  ins t ruc t ion  to  do  a l l  o f  th is  

work  by  Mr  Gav in  Watson.    

ADV MOSIKILI :    I  suppose the  quest ion  is  then.   Have you  

in fo rmed Mr  Gav in  Watson tha t  you d id  no t  wan t  these 

th ings tha t  he  ment ions?  
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MR MAKWETLA :    No.   Abso lu te ly  no .   And fo r  what  I  had 

asked h im to  do  a t  my p lace,  the  secur i t y  fence -  the 

e lec t r i c  fence,  ra the r,  and the  repa i r  to  the  a la rm sys tem.   I  

asked fo r  a  quote  fo r  tha t  work .    

ADV MOSIKILI :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    I  asked fo r  a  quota t ion  fo r  tha t  work .  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Whi le  we are  there .   Go to  page 99  where  

we dea l  w i th  the  costs  o f  th is  p ro jec t .   You w i l l  see  there ,  

Mr  Le  Roux when  asked by  Advoca te  Mole fe  to  say:  

“Thank you,  Cha i r.   And can you  reca l l  what  10 

the  approx imate  cost  was fo r  th is  p ro jec t? . . . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR MAKWETLA :    Yes.  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Do you see the  response the re to?  

MR MAKWETLA :    That  i s  r igh t .  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Yes.    

MR MAKWETLA :    A l l  I  can  say,  Cha i rperson,  w i th  respect  

to  th is  f igure  tha t  Mr  Le  Roux says the  job  a t  my p lace 

cost .   I  want  the  Commiss ion  –  I  want  to  en jo in  the  

Commiss ion  to  –  I  am not  techn ica l l y  sk i l led  to  do  a  proper  20 

read ing  o f  some o f  the  documenta t ion  prov ided he re ,  bu t  in  

the  a t tachments  w i th  respect  to  d i f fe ren t  b i l l s  tha t  Mr  

R icard  le  Roux pa id  fo r  equ ipment  tha t  he  was us ing  a t  the  

d i f fe ren t  p ro jec ts  he  was do ing .   I  wou ld  want  to  d i rec t  the  

Commiss ion  to  Exh ib i t  RLR-035,  wh ich  is  a  –  and i t  i s  
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con ta ined in  Annexure  RLR-1.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Mole fe ,  a re  you ab le  to  d i rec t  me to  

the  r igh t  page?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  Cha i r.   The re ference to  the  annexure  

o f  Mr  R ichard  le  Roux is  RLR-6.   Mr  Makwet la ,  i s  tha t  

where  you are  tak ing  us?  

CHAIRPERSON :    RLR-6?  

MR MAKWETLA :    Yes,  i t  i s  RLR-1 .   That  i s  the  annexure .   

The t i t le  o f  –  the  annexure  and i t  i s  T-21,  RLR-035 .   That  

wou ld  be  the  page.  10 

ADV MOSIKILI :    Perhaps le t  us  do  th is .   Cha i rpe rson,  we 

are  re fer r ing  to  a  –  i t  i s  a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  by  

Mr  Le  Roux and to  us  i t  has  been g iven as  T-21.    

ADV MOLEFE :    Ja-no,  no ,  le t  me . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    What?   T-21?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Mis ter  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :    Exh ib i t . . .   Yes,  Exh ib i t  T-21  and  i t  i s  a  

record  o f  the  t ransact ions a t  a  vendor  ca l led  Rega l (? )  

D is t r ibu tors  Trad ing  in  Greenstone  where . . .   Yes.   And i t  is  

a  –  I  th ink  i t  i s  a  very  he lp fu l  document  because 20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  le t  me get  Ms Mole fe  to  gu ide  me 

f i rs t  on  my bund le  as  to  where  I  w i l l  f ind  i t .  

ADV MOLEFE :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   As  I  was say ing .   The 

annexure  tha t  Mr  Le  Roux re fers  to  inso far  as  the  invo i ces.   
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I t  i s  no t  RLR-1.   I t  i s  RLR-6.   So,  I  am t ry ing  to  es tab l i sh  

whethe r  Mr  Makwet la  meant  RLR-6 or  i f  he  spec i f i ca l l y  

wants  to  take  you ,  Cha i r,  to  RLR-1.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Makwet la?  

MR MAKWETLA :    Le t  me jus t . . .   Accord ing  to  t he  f i le  I  

have,  Ms Mole fe .   I t  i s  T-3  a f f idav i t  o r  R ichard  le  Roux and 

i t  i s  T-21,  RLR-025.   That  i s  where  i t  s ta r ts .    

ADV MOLEFE :    A l r igh t .   In  tha t  case,  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :    And i t  i s  a  p r in tou t .   I t  i s  jus t  a  long  

pr in tou t  o f  t ransact ions fo r  a  pe r iod  o f  about  th ree  years ,  10 

f rom 2014 to  2017 but  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MOLEFE :    So . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :    Yes?  

ADV MOLEFE :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Makwet la .   Cha i r,  tha t  

wou ld  be  Bund le  5 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Page 65.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 65?  

ADV MOLEFE :    O f  Bund le  5 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Ja ,  I  have got  page 65 .   Yes,  20 

Mr  Makwet la?  

MR MAKWETLA :    Cha i r,  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Invo ice  f rom Rega l .  

MR MAKWETLA :    From Rega l ,  tha t  i s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  a  s ta tement ,  yes .  
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MR MAKWETLA :    Yes.   I t  a  long . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And i t  i s  addressed to  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :    . . .p r in tou t  tha t  s ta r ts  f rom 2014 ,  Cha i r,  

to  2017.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  jus t  want  to  f in ish  th is .   I t  is  

addressed to  R ichard  le  Roux.   Yes,  cont inue,  

Mr  Makwet la .  

MR MAKWETLA :    Cha i r,  I  was say ing  tha t  I  was t ry ing  to  

f ind  ou t ,  ou t  o f  these many t ransact ions here  wh ich  ones 

wou ld  have been o f  mater ia l  tha t  was used a t  my house.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    The on ly  re l iab le  th ing  tha t  I  cou ld  use 

as  a  gu ide  a re  the  da tes  o f  the  invo ices  o f  the 

t ransact ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MAKWETLA :    And the  one tha t  sounds a  b i t  re levant  

o f  these t ransac t ions to  purchases tha t  cou ld  have had  

someth ing  to  do  w i th  my house are  those on the  

9 t h  o f  February  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON :    2015?  20 

MR MAKWETLA :    Yes,  2015.   The 9 t h  o f  February  2015.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    There  are  severa l  t ransact ions.   There  

are  about  four  o f  them.   No,  ac tua l l y,  f i ve  o f  them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  
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MR MAKWETLA :    Now these t ransact ions.   When I  looked  

a t  them,  they inc lude a lso  the  –  fo r  ins tance,  a  fence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MAKWETLA :    And tha t  fence is  R 9309,00.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  see tha t .  

MR MAKWETLA :    That  i s  r igh t ,  Cha i r.   And the  o thers  i s  

an  in te rcom.   Yes,  an  in te rcom was  f i t ted .   R  2667.00.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR MAKWETLA :    And then,  wha t  comes a f te r  tha t  i s  no t  

an  i tem but  i t  says  pro jec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MR MAKWETLA :    Now,  you canno t  buy a  pro jec t ,  Cha i r.   I  

thought  tha t  th is  p ro jec t  wou ld  mean,  you know,  every th ing  

tha t  was done in  a  pro jec t  in  te rms o f  the  cost ing ,  bu t  you  

do not  buy a  p ro jec t  f rom a  vendor.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MAKWETLA :    So ,  I  wou ld  no t  be  sure  what  tha t  re fe rs  

to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Un less ,  Mr  Makwet la ,  you and I  no t  

be ing  in  the  sector  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

MR MAKWETLA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .who do not  know.    Maybe there  is  

someth ing  ca l led  pro jec t  someth ing  tha t  you can buy  and i t  

cou ld  mean –  I  do  no t  know.   So,  bu t  when you are  fo re ign  

to  a  secto r,  somet imes there  are  words you  do not  
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unders tand.  

MR MAKWETLA :    [ Ind is t inc t ] ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MAKWETLA :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR MAKWETLA :    Cha i r,  when I  looked a t  a l l  o f  those 

f igures . . .   You can go on and on .   Put  them toge ther  a l l  

those f igures .   I  do  no t  –  they do  not  ta l l y.   They do not  

g ive  you a  to ta l  tha t  you wou ld  be  around th ree  hundred 

thousand o r  th ree  hundred-and- f i f t y  thousand.   Those  10 

f igures .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    That  i s  the  f i r s t  th ing .   But  the  second 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  a f te r  I  go t  f rom BOSASA.   When Gav in  

Watson eventua l l y  conceded and apo log ised and gave me 

the  b i l l . . . .  The Commiss ion  has tha t  b i l l .   I t  i s  R 85 000,00  

and I  quer ies  tha t  b i l l  and the  reason – the  ground on 

wh ich  I  quer ied  the  b i l l ,  i t  i s  because the  b i l l  i nc luded  

th ings tha t  I  d id  no t  ask  fo r.    

 And I  to ld  Gav in ,  I  have not  asked fo r  these th ings.   20 

What  have you put  there?  You must  remove.   I  am not  

go ing  to  pay fo r  what  I  have not . . .   And tha t  i s  why I  pa id 

R 25 000,00,  as  I  have exp la ined in  my ear l ie r  appearance  

–  in  my prev ious appearance,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  
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MR MAKWETLA :    So ,  what  I  am say ing  is  tha t .   I f  the 

Commiss ion  cou ld  jus t  look  a t  the  th ings tha t  R ichard  le  

Roux is  say ing  is  there  and see i f  they  make sense,  I  w i l l  

be  happy.   When I  made my a f f idav i t ,  i t  was w i th  the  

unders tand ing  tha t  th is  i s  a  cond i t ion  fo r  me to  be  granted 

the  pr iv i lege o f  c ross-examin ing  R ichard  le  Roux.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

MR MAKWETLA :    On ly,  i t  i s  no t  necessary.   The 

in fo rmat ion  is  there .   Le t  the  Commiss ion  jus t  in te r rogate ,  

us ing  i t s  own exper t i se ,  the  in fo rmat ion  be fore  the  10 

Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Mr  Makwet la ,  wh i le  you are  on  tha t .   I  

th ink  you can go to  paragraph 60 and tha t  w i l l  be  on  page 

13.   So,  i t  i s  T-21,  RLR-013  and i t  i s  paragraph  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Whose a f f idav i t  i s  tha t?   I s  tha t  

Mr  Le  Roux ’s  a f f idav i t?  20 

ADV MOSIKILI :    Mr  Le  Roux ’s  a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You say paragraph?  

ADV MOSIKILI :    S ix ,  zero  (60 ) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  the  one  s tar t ing :   I  was a lways  

ins t ruc ted . . .?  
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ADV MOSIKILI :    No,  Cha i r.   I t  s ta r ts  w i th :   I  persona l l y  

a t tended to  the  ins ta l la t ion  together  w i th  o ther  fou r  

techn ic ians.    

CHAIRPERSON :    That  a f f idav i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes. . .   I t  i s  bund le  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Ms Mole fe?  

ADV MOLEFE :    I t  i s  Bund le  5 ,  page 52.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   We are  a t  the  end o f  o ra l  

ev idence,  bu t  i t  wou ld  have been  much bet te r  i f  everybody 

had the  same th ing .    10 

ADV MOSIKILI :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 52?  

ADV MOLEFE :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  page 52,  tha t  you gave me,  

Ms Mole fe?  

ADV MOLEFE :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Ja ,  okay,  I  am there .   Pa ragraph  

60:   I  persona l ly  a t tended. . .  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Yes.   Mr  Makwet la ,  a re  you the re?  

MR MAKWETLA :    Okay,  you can cont inue.   You can  20 

cont inue.  

ADV MOSIKILI :    I  need you to  be  there  a t  paragraph 60.   

Th is  i s  Mr  Le  Roux ’s  second  s ta tement  o r  a t  leas t  

submi t ted  s ta tement  tha t  he  gave . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  I  know what  quest ion  you want  to  
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pu t ,  Mr  Mos ik i l i .  

MR MAKWETLA :    Ja ,  I  have got  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Parag raph 60 says,  Mr  Makwet la :  

“ I  persona l ly  a t tended to  the  ins ta l la t ion  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    “ . . . together  w i th  another  four  techn ic ians  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :    Four  techn ic ians.   Yes,  yes .   I  see.  

CHAIRPERSON :    “ . . .wh ich  I  sa id  a  m in imum of  21-days to  10 

comple te . . . ”  

MR MAKWETLA :    I  am there ,  Cha i r,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Mos ik i l i ,  do  you want  to  take  i t  f rom 

there?  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Perhaps in  the  in te res t  o f  t ime,  Cha i r.   I  

wou ld  a l so  want  Mr  Makwet la  to  cons ider  paragraph 61  

where  he  g i ves  a  breakdown o f  the  costs  tha t  a re  incur red ,  

and you w i l l  see  f rom there  on ,  he  ment ions an  amount  o f  20 

hundred-and- f i f t y -one jus t  one fo r  labour  and he goes and  

ment ions anothe r  amount  o f ,  I  th ink ,  i t  i s  about  twenty-one  

thousand a t  s ix  po in t  –  60 .2 .    

 No,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  61 .3 ,  wh ich  the  costs  per  f i ve  

techn ic ians.   And you w i l l  a lso  see tha t  he  a l so  ment ions  
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another  amount  wh ich  re fers  to  t rave l  costs .   That  i s  61 .2 .   

So,  I  want  to  g ive  your  comment ,  g loba l l y,  f rom 60 to  61 ,  in  

the  in te res t  o f  t ime,  to  say tha t  th is  t ype o f  invo i ce . . .   F i rs t  

o f  a l l .   Have you  been g iven th is  invo i ce?  Have you seen 

th is  invo i ce  to  you?  Seen th is  invo ice  be fore?  

MR MAKWETLA :    No,  I  have not  been prov ided –  favoured 

w i th  an  i temised  invo ice  f rom BOSASA and I  fought  over  

th is  when we were  –  they were  demand ing e igh t - f i ve  

thousand f rom me.   I  sa id  you i temise  your  b i l l .   I f  you  do  

not  i temise  your  b i l l ,  I  am not  go ing  to  g ive  you e igh t - f i ve  10 

thousand because among the  th ings tha t  you have done a t  

my p lace are  th ings I  have not  asked fo r.   So,  i t  must  be  

c lea r  tha t  the  b i l l  must  be  i temised because i f  i t  i s  no t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    I f  i t  i s  no t  i temised,  I  wou ld  no t  see  

what  i s  i t  tha t  I  was –  need to  pay fo r.   And tha t  i s  why I  

ended up pay ing  twenty- f i ve  thousand.   The manner  in  

wh ich  I  a r r i ved  a t  tha t  twenty - f i ve  thousand,  I  have  

exp la ined i t  to  the  Commiss ion  be fore .   But  in  re la t ion  to  20 

th is  b reakdown tha t  i s  p rov ided here  o f  the  b i l l .   There  are  

th ings tha t  a re  ve ry,  you know,  wor ry ing .  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Can I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :    For  s ta r te rs  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MOSIKILI :    I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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MR MAKWETLA :    Yes,  fo r  s ta r te rs .   Mr  Le  Roux says he 

had f i ve  o ther  techn ic ians.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Four.   Four  p lus  h im.  

MR MAKWETLA :    Oh,  f i ve . . .   He was the  f i f th ,  yes .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MAKWETLA :    There  a re  two techn ic ians tha t  

Mr  Le  Roux was work ing  on  the  p ro jec t  w i th .   He was the 

th i rd  pe rson.   That  i s  the  f i rs t  th ing .   The second po in t  i s  

tha t  they never  came there ,  no t  even w i th  two veh ic les .   

They have a lways been in  one pane l  van.   I  see  here ,  he  10 

says they came there  w i th  th ree  veh ic les .   They have never  

been to  my p lace w i th  th ree  veh ic les .   There  has never  

been more  than th ree  peop le  inc lud ing  Mr Le  Roux h imse l f  

ons i te  when the  j ob  was done.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR MAKWETLA :    So,  i t  i s  some o f  these th ings wh ich  

c lea r ly  says the  ev idence tha t  he  has p rov ided here  cannot  

be  re l ied  upon.   As  I  sa id ,  I  was not  there  in  the  o ther  days 

when Mr  Le  Roux  –  espec ia l l y  when he s ta r ted  and d id  the  

greater  par t  o f  the  job .   I  was not  there .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

ADV MOSIKILI :    So  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :    That  i s  why I  am worr i ed  –  I  am worr ied  

tha t  he  is  ment ion ing  th ings tha t  a re  ev ident ly  to  me,  f rom 

where  I  s i t ,  abso lu te ly  m is lead ing .   Incor rec t .  
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ADV MOSIKILI :    Can I  jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :    Incor rec t .  

ADV MOSIKILI :    The las t  quest ion  on  th is  top ic ,  because I  

th ink  we are  ou t  o f  t ime.  

MR MAKWETLA :    Yes.  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Mr  Makwet la ,  have you rece ived a  

quest ion ,  as  you had requested be fore ,  request ing  tha t ,  a t  

the  very  least ,  there  w i l l  be  a  labour  o f  hundred and f i f t y  

thousand?  Had you rece ived tha t?   What  wou ld  have been 

your  comment?  10 

MR MAKWETLA :    The hundred and f i f t y  thousand  when I  

saw i t  here  –  ac tua l l y,  hundred and f i f t y -one thousand.   I t  

le f t  me baf f led  because my ca l cu la t ion  was  s imp le  

convent iona l  log i c  tha t  on  any techn ica l  work  tha t  is  be ing  

done,  mater ia l  bought  –  o r  le t  me say,  the  labour  charged 

on the  work  done  can never  be  ha l f  o f  what  the  b i l l  o f  the  

mater ia l  used is .   On. .    

 The b i l l  i s  about  th ree  hundred thousand and he  

says the  labour  was about  hundred and f i f t y  thousand.   I t  

means ha l f  o f  the  amount  was labour  o f  a  job  tha t  needed 20 

mater ia l  o f  about  hundred and f i f t y  thousand.   I  am jus t  

say ing  tha t  even  when you take  a  car  fo r  a  serv i ce  to  a  

garage,  the  amount  o f  par ts  tha t  you w i l l  pay  fo r  the  repa i r  

o f  the  veh ic le  i t  w i l l  a lways be fa r  above the  un i t  o f  labour  

to  f i x  the  car.    
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 Nowhere ,  I  am –  we are  to ld  tha t  the  labour  

expanded on th i s  p ro jec t  tha t  needed  to  mate r ia l  o f  about  

hundred and f i f t y  thousand.   I t  i s  hundred and f i f t y  

thousand wor th  o f  hours .   I  have a  se r ious prob lem wi th  

th is .   Not  even BOSASA themse lves in  the  b i l l  tha t  I  go t  

f rom BOSASA have they –  i f  they  sa id  the  job  cost  e igh ty-

f i ve  thousand,  where  has the  who le  hundred and f i f t y  

thousand cost  o f  labour  go ing  to?    

 So what  I  say  is .   These are  the  th ings wh ich  I  

th ink  Mr  Le  Roux  who was jus t  pa i r ing(?) ,  you know,  s tu f f  10 

here  than prov id ing  a  s incere  accura te  in fo rmat ion  about  

what  he  d id  and how i t  happened.  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Mr  Makwet la ,  jus t  because we are  ou t  o f  

t ime.   You had sa id  tha t  you wanted to  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Mos ik i l i?  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A l though there  are  t ime cha l lenges.   In  

the  end,  I  do  wan t  you to  be  ab le  to  do  jus t i ce .   So,  i f  there  

are  impor tan t  th ing  tha t  you s t i l l  want  to  cover,  you must  

te l l  me.  20 

ADV MOSIKILI :    I  am indebted,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Perhaps one las t  sub- top i c  on  th is  and  

then I  want  h im to  speak to  you br ie f l y  about  the  

Par l iamentary  repor t .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Mr  Makwet la  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me ask. . .   May I  ask  h im th is  

quest ion?  Do you have any comment ,  Mr  Makwet la ,  on  

Mr  Le  Roux ’s  ev idence in  pa ragraph 60 tha t  the  job  took a  

m in imum of  21-days to  comple te?  

MR MAKWETLA :    I  do  have a  v iew on tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    And my v iew is  tha t  th is  is  to ta l l y  

inco r rec t .   To ta l l y  incor rec t .    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    Because i t  took  them one week to  do  

a lmost  80% of  the  job ,  as  I  sa id  in  my ev idence.   To  say,  I  

came back –  I  work  in  Cape Town when Par l iament  i s  in  

sess ion .   When  I  le f t  on  Monday o f  tha t  week,  Gav in  

Watson has sa id  he  w i l l  send a  team to  go  and do an 

eva lua t ion  o f  the  work  to  be  done  and I  was expec t ing  an  

invo i ce .   I  am sor ry.   A . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Quota t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Quota t ion .  20 

MR MAKWETLA :    A quota t ion .   Thank you very  much.   I  

was expect ing  a  quota t ion .   When  I  came back on  Fr iday,  

the  work  was done a l ready,  80%.   The on ly  th ing  remain ing 

a t  the  t ime was tha t  –  because they cou ld  no t  go  in to  the 

house,  they cou ld  no t  do  the  necessary  connec t ion  in  
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re la t ion  to  the ,  you know,  the  cont ro ls  o f  th is  a la rm sys tem.   

They needed access in to  the  house.    

 And because I  on ly  had a  person  who worked –  I  

mean,  who ass i s t  me in  the  garden,  who l i ves  on  the 

proper ty,  he  cou ld  –  and he does not  have access in to  the  

house.   That  was a l l  tha t  was remain ing .   21-days are  th ree  

weeks.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR MAKWETLA :    I  do  no t  know where  he  gets  these th ree  

weeks f rom.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Cont inue,  Mr  Mos ik i l i .  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Mr  Makwet la ,  bo th  you and Mr  Le  Roux 

agree tha t  there  was a  p rob lem wi th  the  camera  sys tem.   

Can you jus t  te l l  the  Cha i r,  the  Commiss ion ,  how tha t  

p rob lem was u l t imate ly  reso lved?  

MR MAKWETLA :    R igh t  f rom the  word -go.   A few days  

a f te r  they had ins ta l led  the  en t i re  sys tem,  I  was supposed 

to  have access to  a  v iew o f  the  house f rom wherever.   Of  

course ,  tha t  d id  no t  work .   F i r s t  week.   And I  phoned them 

the  fo l low ing week to  make them aware  tha t  th is  sys tem 20 

has ac tua l l y  co l lapsed.   They came back to  f i x  i t .    

 As  soon as  they le f t ,  the  sys tem was down aga in .   

I  then dec ided I  am not  go ing  to  pursue th is  mat te r  o f  the 

sys tem tha t  i s  no t  work ing  because I  had not  even pa id  fo r  

i t .   That  was my prob lem.   I  have not  pa id  fo r  i t  and I  had 
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no  g rounds as  a  customer  to  exe rc ise  my r igh ts  t o  fo rce  

them to  come and  sor t  ou t  the  prob lem.    

 I t  gave me the  oppor tun i ty  to  say to  Gavin :   Gav in ,  

remove th is  sys tem.   I  w i l l  i ns ta l l  th is  sys tem when I  need 

i t  and when I  have money. . .   Because the  sys tem never  

worked.   I t  never  worked.   I  was  l i s ten ing  to  the  ear l ie r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi tness.  

MR MAKWETLA :    . . .w i tness who was appear ing  be fore  the  

Commiss ion  and to  me i t  appeared as  i f  the  techno log ies  10 

tha t  they were  us ing  were  ac tua l l y  no t  as  a l l  as  what  they 

made them to  be .   That  sys tem never  worked and they 

removed i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Ja .  

ADV MOSIKILI :    I f  somebody was to  say tha t  you  

benef i ted  f rom these cameras.   What  wou ld  be  your  

comment  then?  

MR MAKWETLA :    I  have jus t  sa id  tha t  they have never  

worked.   I  f i rs t  sa id  tha t  they have never  worked.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  20 

ADV MOSIKILI :    Thank you.   And I  want  us  to  dea l  w i th  

the  Par l iamentary  repor t .   You had tes t i f ied  ea r l ie r  on ,  

when you were  l ed  in -ch ie f ,  tha t  you have d i f f i cu l t ies  w i th  

the  repor t .   Cha i r,  in  the  repor t  i s  conta in ing  BOSASA-03.   

I  th ink  th is  i s  the  Bund le  3 ,  124.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Bund le  3  and you are  say ing  page 124? 

ADV MOSIKILI :    No,  no  Cha i r.   We are  dea l ing  w i th  page  

181.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Th is  i s  the  commi t tee  repor t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Mr  Makwet la ,  a re  you on the  document?  

MR MAKWETLA :   The commi t tee  repor t ,  yes ,  I  am the 

commi t tee  repor t .  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you can cont inue.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Okay.   You had a l luded ear l ie r  on  tha t  you 

have d i f f i cu l t ies  w i th  the  repor t  bo th  in  te rms o f  p rocedure  

and the  substance there to .   Care  to  h igh l igh t  to  the  

Commiss ioner  p rocedura l l y  what  d i f f i cu l t ies  you have w i th  

th is  repor t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  know tha t  las t  t ime he d id  dea l  w i th  

p rocedura l  i ssues.   I s  there  someth ing  tha t  you d id  no t  

cover  tha t  you want  h im to cover  on  procedura l  i ssues?  Mr  

Makwet la ,  am I  cor rec t ,  you d id  dea l  w i th  p rocedura l  i ssues  20 

tha t  you have w i th  how the  repor t  came about ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR MAKWETLA :   I  d id ,  Cha i r ,  and tha t  what  perhaps I  

shou ld  jus t  under l ine ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

MR MAKWETLA :   A re  the  gross  i r regu lar i t ies  tha t  occur red  
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on  th is  mat te r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  now what  I  am say ing  is  I  know tha t  

we dea l t  w i th  the  repor t  las t  t ime.  

MR MAKWETLA :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  no t  las t  week when you appeared.   

A l l  I  am s imply  say ing  is ,  I  do  no t  want  us  to  repeat  the  

same th ing .  

MR MAKWETLA :   No –  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am jus t  say ing  are  there  aspects  tha t  

you d id  no t  cover  wh ich  you wou ld  l i ke  to  cover?  10 

MR MAKWETLA :   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  i f  you  want  to  cover  

aspects  tha t  you  d id  no t  cover ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  you can dea l  

w i th  them.  

MR MAKWETLA :   Cha i r .   Wha t  I  d id  no t  make the  

Commiss ion  aware  is  tha t  the  repor t  tha t  we a re  re fer r ing  

to  as  an  exh ib i t  here ,  I  saw the  repor t  as  I  was tak ing  my  

seat  a t  the  Commiss ion  the  las t  t ime I  appeared fo r  the 

f i rs t  t ime and I  was ac tua l l y  shocked tha t  the re  is  a  record  

o f  par l iament  on  the  case aga ins t  me by  the  e th ics  20 

commi t tee ,  tha t  there  was ac tua l l y  a  record  o f  pa r l iament .   

As  the  Cha i r  wou ld  unders tand,  we exp la ined –  I  exp la ined 

tha t  f rom January  th is  year  r igh t  up  to  March I  had to  ge t  

to  engage lawyers  to  wr i te  to  par l iament  to  share  the  

record  o f  par l iament  on  th is  mat te r  and the  Commiss ion  –  
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and i t  i s  a t tached ,  has th ree  le t te rs  tha t  were  wr i t ten  to  the  

Speaker  o f  par l iament  and the  Cha i r  o f  the  E th ics  

Commi t tee  by  my lawyers  ask ing  fo r  th is  record  none o f  

those le t te rs  were  responded to ,  no  rep l ies ,  no  document  

p rov ided by  pa r l iament .   I  was ac tua l l y  surpr ised tha t  they  

had sent  a  document  purpor ted ly  to  be  a  repor t  o f  th is  case  

to  the  Commiss ion .    

Now th is  i s  the  most  g ross  o f  i r regu lar i t ies  

commi t ted  in  par l iament ,  i t  i s  a  t ravesty  o f  jus t i ce  i t  i s  

unprecedented,  Cha i r ,  i t  i s  an  unprecedented scanda l  in  10 

par l iament .   I  am prepared to  go  to  those lengths  because  

what  has happened i s  tha t  th is  repor t ,  two th ings about  

them tha t  I  want  the  Commiss ion  to  under l ine  is  tha t  

acco rd ing  to  the  ru les  o f  the  Nat iona l  Assembly ,  tha t  i s  the  

8 t h  Ed i t ion  o f  the  Ru les  o f  the  Nat iona l  Assembly  wh ich  we 

have here ,  I  have the  book le t ,  we  w i l l  send th rough to  the  

Commiss ion  fo r  perusa l .   Chapter  15 ,  ta lks  about  the 

laps ing  o f  bus iness be fore  the  assembly  and i t  says :  

“Laps ing  o f  bus iness on  the  las t  s i t t ing  day o f  

annua l  sess ion  or  te rm o f  assembly  or  when the  20 

assembly  i s  d isso lved:  

1 .  A l l  mot ions and a l l  o ther  bus iness o ther  than b i l l s  

on  the  o rder  paper  on  the  las t  s i t t ing  day o f  an  

annua l  sess ion  o f  the  assembly  lapses a t  the  end 

o f  tha t  day.  
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2 .  A l l  bus iness re fe r red  to  in  sub- ru le  1  be fore  the  

assembly  or  any assembly  commi t tee  on  the  las t  

s i t t ing  day o f  a  te rm o f  the  assembly  o r  when the  

assembly  i s  be ing  d isso lved lapse a t  the  end o f  

tha t  day. ”  

The reason I  am d i rec t ing  the  Commiss ion  to  th is ,  i t  i s  

because th is  repor t  was ATC a  week a f te r  par l iament  had 

been d isso lved.  

 What  had happened,  Cha i r ,  i s  tha t  the  te rm o f  the  

las t  pa r l iament ,  the  5 t h  par l iament ,  and i t s  te rm ended on 10 

the  20  May 2019.   On tha t  day a l l  bus iness o f  the  house,  i t  

does not  mat te r  whethe r  i t  was a t  the  commi t tee  leve l ,  i t  

was on the  way to  the  assembly ,  i t  lapses.  

 Now what  happened is  tha t  the  commi t tee  cont inues  

work ,  a t  leas t  f rom what  we a re  to ld ,  un t i l  the  28 t h  because  

I  ge t  wr i t ten  by  the  e th ics  commi t tee  a  le t te r  to  say we  

have met  and we  have found you gu i l t y .   I  was shocked,  I  

was a t  home when I  go t  tha t .   Par l iament  had ad journed – 

no t  ad journed,  I  am sor ry ,  had been d isso l ved,  we had 

s tar ted  campaign ing  now fo r  the  e lec t ions o f  2019  –  I  am 20 

sor ry  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    When par l iament  i s  d isso lved,  what  i s  

the  e f fec t  o f  tha t  and I  know maybe th is  m ight  be  a  lega l  

i ssue but  you might  be  ab le  to  ass is t  because you  are  an  

MP and you have been an MP for  a  long t ime and,  o f  
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course ,  I  th ink  the  same th ing  wou ld  happen in  a  prov inc ia l  

leg is la tu re  and you have got  exper ience o f  tha t  as  we l l .   

Does a  commi t tee  cont inue to  have power  to  do  anyth ing  

a f te r  par l iament  has been d isso l ved a t  the  end o f  a  f i ve  

year  te rm? 

MR MAKWETLA :   Cha i rperson,  the  answer  i s  no ,  i t  does 

not  have those  powers  because a l l  commi t tees o f  

par l iament  a re  s imp ly  p rocess ing  body o f  the  work  tha t  i s  

be fore  par l iament  on  beha l f  o f  par l iament  and tha t  i s  why 

the  repor ts  o f  the  commi t tees fo r  as  long as  they have not  10 

been tab led  fo r  adopt ion  by  the  p lenary  o f  par l iament  they 

en joy  no  s ta tus .  

 So even in  re la t ion  to  th is  e th ics  commi t tee ’s  

repor t ,  th is  repor t  –  okay,  we put  as ide  the  issue about  

par l iament  hav ing  been d isso l ved.   P rocedura l l y  th is  repor t  

shou ld  have been tab led  in  the  Nat iona l  Assembly  and the  

Nat iona l  Assemb ly  wou ld  have had to  adopt ,  re jec t  o r  

amend the  repor t .   That  d id  no t  happen and i t  was not  

go ing  to  happen  because par l iament  had been d isso l ved.   

So the  repor t  had  not  s ta tus .   20 

 That  i s  why when I  perused the  mat te r  w i th  the  

o f f i ce  o f  the  Speaker  to  f ind  ou t  f rom the  Speaker  why 

have I  been wr i t ten  a  le t te r  by  the  commi t tee  i t se l f ,  I  have 

not  been wr i t ten  a  le t te r  by  the  –  because these  mat te rs  

a re  eventua l l y  executed by  the  Speaker  o f  par l i ament  as  
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the  rep resent ing  pane l .   The Speaker  o f  par l iament  never  

wro te  to  me about  th is  dec i s ion  and when I  checked w i th  

the  Speaker ’s  o f f i ce  i t  had not  record  o f  th is  meet ing  and 

th is  dec is ion .  

 What  i s  even worse  is  tha t  in  the  f ind ings or  in  the  

sanct ion  tha t  i s  conta ined in  t he  repor t ,  sanct ion  number  1  

i s  tha t  the  Speaker  must  address me in  a  s i t t ing  o f  

par l iament  and o rde r  me to  make  a  pub l i c  apo logy.   I t  i s  

sanct ion  number  1 .    

But  th is  repor t ,  the  speaker ’ s  o f f i ce  had no s igh t  o f  10 

i t ,  i t  i s  no t  there ,  i t  was never  submi t ted  to  the  Speaker ’ s  

o f f i ce .    Not  on l y  tha t ,  I  fo l lowed the  mat te r  up  w i th  the  

Ch ie f  Whip  o f  my par ty ,  the  la te Mr  Jackson Mthembu,  may 

h is  sou l  res t  in  peace,  I  checked w i th  h im whether  he  had 

rece ived a  repor t  f rom the  e th ics  commi t tee  because as  my  

wh ip ,  the  wh ip  o f  my par ty  in  pa r l iament ,  he  wou ld  have 

been c i ted  o f  th is  repor t  by  the  e th ics  commi t tee  to  say 

take  note  tha t  one o f  your  member ’ s  case tha t  we have 

been dea l ing  w i th ,  th is  i s  what  i s  our  f ind ing  aga ins t  h im.   

He had no reco rd  o f  tha t .  20 

Th i rd l y ,  Cha i r ,  the  repor t  i s  no t  s igned,  th is  repor t  

has names a t  the  end o f  the  peop le  who are  supposed to  

have s igned i t .   The e th ics  commi t tee  is  a  jo ined commi t tee  

o f  the  Nat iona l  Assembly  and the  NCOP.   The two cour t  

Cha i rs  …[ in tervenes]  
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ADV MOSIKILI :   Jus t  wa i t ,  Mr  Makwet la .   Cha i r ,  those  

names w i l l  appear  a t  the  end o f  the  repor t  a t  page 186.   

There  is  Honourab le  Maxegwana and Honourab le  S ingh  a t  

the  bo t tom,  Cha i r ,  page 186,  Cha i r .   Page 186,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  can see i t ,  ja .  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes.   Sor ry ,  Mr  Makwet la .  

MR MAKWETLA :    Honourab le  Cha i rperson,  Mr  Humphrey  

Maxegwana is  a  member  o f  the  ANC of  my par ty .   I  have 

asked h im whether  he  is  aware  o f  th is  repor t .   He was  

puzz led .   He knew noth ing  o f  th is  repor t .    10 

Mr  S ingh,  the  o ther  name tha t  i s  a t tached there ,  

be longs to  the  IFP.   I  do  no t  know –  I  d id  no t  have access 

to  h im but  a t  leas t  to  th is  ANC member  who is  par t  o f  th is  

commi t tee ,  I  had  a  conf i rmat ion ,  no  doubt  th is  repor t ,  he  

does not  know about  i t  bu t  no t  on ly  tha t ,  Cha i r ,  i t  i s  

in te res t ing  fo r  me and I  wou ld  be  happy i f  th is  commiss ion  

can a t  leas t  fo rce  par l iament  to  p roduce the  m inutes  o f  th is  

meet ing  tha t  d iscussed my mat te r  and who a t tended i t  and  

when d id  i t  take  p lace because f rom where  I  s i t  and as  I  

am appear ing  be fore  th is  Commiss ion ,  I  have no doubt  tha t  20 

meet ing  never  took p lace.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  I  th ink  Ms Mole fe ,  i t  is  go ing  

to  be  necessary  fo r  the  Commiss ion  to  wr i te  to  Mr  

Maxegwana and to  Mr  S ingh to  f ind  ou t  what  they know 

about  th is  repor t ,  i f  they  can do tha t  by  way o f  an  a f f idav i t ,  
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each one,  and as  we l l  as  –  do  you know,  Mr  Makwet la ,  

whethe r  they are  s t i l l  cha i r ing  the  e th ics  commi t tee  or  no t  

o r  i s  i t  o ther  peop le  now? 

MR MAKWETLA :   I t  i s  o ther  peop le ,  Honourab le  

Cha i rperson,  Mr  Maxegwana is  no  longer  a  member  o f  

par l iament ,  he  is  ac tua l l y  the  Speaker  o f  the  Buf fa lo  

Mun ic ipa l i t y  in  the  Easte rn  Cape.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKWETLA :    Mr  S ingh,  I  am not  sure  whether  he  

re turned to  par l iament ,  I  am not  su re .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   That  i s  f ine ,  I  th ink  they 

shou ld  be  wr i t ten  to  even i f  they  are  no  longer  in  

par l iament  so  tha t  we get  the  s to ry  as  to  what  do  they  

know about  th is  and then,  Ms Mole fe ,  we need to  wr i te  to  –  

and in  wr i t ing  to  them,  i f  they  know someth ing  about  i t ,  

they  must  a lso  i nd ica te  what  meet ings were  he ld  wh ich  

resu l ted  in  the  repor t  by  the  commi t tee  and when those  

meet ings were  he ld  and whethe r  there  are  m inutes  tha t  

they are  aware  o f  and we need to  wr i te  to  the  cur ren t  –  the 

Secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion  must  wr i te  to  the  cur ren t  20 

Cha i r  o r  Cha i rs  o f  the  e th i cs  commi t tee  to  es tab l i sh  o r  

wr i te  to  the  secre tary  o f  tha t  commi t tee  or  par l iament  to  

es tab l i sh  i f  par l iament  has go t  m inutes  o f  meet ings o f  th is  

commi t tee  wh ich  dea l t  w i th  th is  i ssue tha t  resu l ted  in  th is  

repor t  and whether  there  is  any t ransc r ip t  o f  de l ibe ra t ions 
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o r  ev idence tha t  was led  be fore  the  commi t tee  tha t  led  to  

th is  repor t .  

 So,  Ms Mole fe ,  you can ass is t  to  the  drawing o f ,  the  

dra f t ing  o f  the  le t te rs  fo r  the  Secre tary  to  be  d i rec ted  to  

var ious peop le  so  tha t  we can get  tha t  and I  th ink  i t  shou ld  

be  –  ja ,  then we can take  i t  f rom there  and then when we  

rece ive  i t ,  Mr  Makwet la  can be –  th rough h is  lawyers ,  can 

be fu rn i shed w i th  cop ies  and he can then comment  i f  there  

i s  a  need fo r  comment .  

MS MOLEFE:   Thank you,  Cha i r .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  Mr  Mos ik i l i?  

ADV MOSIKILI :    Mr  Makwet la ,  jus t  p robab ly  the  las t  

comment  on  th is  repor t .   A t  5 .2 ,  wh ich  is  page 189,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  cont inue.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes,  the  essence  o f  what  i s  be ing  sa id  a t  

5 .2  is  tha t  the  commi t tee  a lso  found the  member  in  the 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  i t  cannot  be  189.   Do you say  

185?  

ADV MOSIKILI :   185,  Cha i r .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay and the  pa rag raph?  5  po in t?  

ADV MOSIKILI :   5 .2 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay,  cont inue.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Yes,  Cha i r ,  the  crux  o f  i t  i s  tha t  the  

commi t tee  found the  member  to  have breached the  i tem as 
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l i s ted  there  o f  the  code and i t  says  tha t  when he a l lowed a  

company tha t  was cont rac ted  to  h is  depar tment  to  conduct  

work  a t  h is  p r iva te  p lace wh ich  was not  pa id  fo r .   That  i s  

the  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :   That  i s  mal ic ious .  

ADV MOSIKILI :   What  i s  your  comment  to  tha t?  

MR MAKWETLA :   Adv Mos ik i l i ,  th rough you,  Cha i r ,  the  

repor t  i s  a  f i ve  page document .   The Commiss ion  w i l l  have  

the  t ime to read the  repor t ,  i t  i s  the  shor tes t  o f  work  I  have 

ever  encounte red  a t  tha t  leve l .   I t  i s  ac tua l l y  no  –  there  is  10 

no  repor t .   There  is  no  repor t  except  fo r  s ta t ing  what  the  

a l legat ions aga ins t  th is  member  a re ,  what  the  member  has  

sa id ,  what  the  code says the  f ind ings,  the  in te r rogat ion  o f  

the  ev idence prov ided by  the  member ,  a re  no t  anywhere ,  

they a re  no t  there  in  the  repor t .   From tha t  the  repor t  jus t  

goes s t ra igh t  to  sanct ion  and I  am ra is ing  th is  because,  

Cha i r ,  in  the  ru les  o f  the  code o f  e th ica l  conduct  and 

d isc losure  o f  member ’s  in te res t ,  i t  i s  a  book le t ,  i t  i s  here ,  

we w i l l  a lso  fo rward  i t  to  the  Commiss ion  fo r  the  

Commiss ion  to  see fo r  i t se l f .    20 

Chapte r  10  o f  th is  code o f  conduct  dea ls  w i th  

b reaches o f  the  code o f  conduct  and the  invest iga t ion  

procedures.   I t  has  12  pages.   I t  i s  the  longest  chapter  o f  

th is  code.   Not  a  s ing le  one o f  the  prov i s ions  in  th is  

chapter  were  observed by  the  commi t tee ,  i t  i s  l i ke  the  
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commi t tee  jus t  took –  they th rew the  ru le  book out  by  the  

w indow.   Not  a  s ing le  one,  12  pages tha t  gu ides how the  

commi t tee  must  –  what  i s  impor tan t  o f  those pr inc ip les  tha t  

I  want  to  d raw the  Commiss ion ’ s  a t ten t ion  to ,  i t  i s  two 

issues.    

I t  says ,  w i th  respect  to  p rocedure  fo r  the  

invest iga t ion  o f  compla in ts ,  genera l  p r inc ip le ,  th is  

p rocedure  i s  based on and in tended to  be  gu ided by  the  

pr inc ip le  o f  p romptness,  fa i rness and cons is tency.   That  i s  

the  f i rs t  i ssue.    10 

Promptness –  Cha i r ,  th is  mat te r  a rose in  2018.   The  

commi t tee  wro te  to  me and sa id  prov ide  an  exp lanat ion ,  

wh ich  I  d id .   That  was the  end ,  Cha i r .   I  p rov ided an  

exp lanat ion  in  2018,  no th ing  happened and I  thought  they 

are  sa t is f ied  w i th  the  exp lanat ion  tha t  I  p rov ided.    

A  year  la te r  in  2019 a  week before  the  ad journment  

o f  par l iament  –  and tha t  i s  why  th is  who le ,  you  know,  

mat te r  i s  ve ry  wor r isome.   A  week  before  the  pa r l iament  i s  

d isso l ved –  in  2019 now,  I  am wr i t ten  a  le t te r  to  say  

prov ide  paper  t ra i l  to  say  you have pa id  to  –  you pa id  20 

BOSASA but  a lso  you have engaged the  Pres ident  on  th is  

mat te r  as  you a l lege.   I  p rov ide  tha t  ev idence.    

From there  the  commi t tee  does not  say  we a re  no t  

happy w i th  the  ev idence you have  prov ided can you come 

and exp la in  yourse l f .   Ins tead they proceed to  f i nd  me 
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gu i l t y ,  I  am never  ca l led  to  come before  the  commi t tee .    

One o f  the  ru les  says he re ,  Cha i r ,  tha t  i s  the  

second ru le ,  on  hear ings,  hear ings must  be  he ld  when the  

fac ts  a re  in  d ispu te .   I f  the  commi t tee  found -   the  fo rens i c  

I  p rov ided o f  the  payments  to  BOSASA,  no t  sa t is fac tory ,  o f  

my engagement  w i th  the  Pres iden t ’s  o f f i ce  was ac tua l l y  no t  

sa t is fac tory ,  why  d id  they no t  ca l l  me to  come and  exp la in  

myse l f  because they were  d ispu t ing?  Noth ing  o f  tha t  

happened.  

So as  I  am say ing ,  the  jus t  th rew out  the  ru le  book ,  10 

tha t  meet ing  ever  happened and dec ided to  become a  

kangaroo cour t  in  an  ins t i tu t ion  tha t  i s  s i t t ing  a t  the  apex  

o f  advanc ing  democracy in  our  count ry.   To ta l l y  

unacceptab le ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Mr  Mos ik i l i?  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Cha i r ,  I  know when I  am over ,  I  know 

when …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  th ink  I  have g i ven you more  than 

enough,  ja .  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Perhaps Mr  Makwet la  can jus t  dea l  w i th  20 

the  las t  top i c  hopefu l l y  in  less  than a  m inute  tha t  I  wanted  

h im to  canvass –  a t  leas t  we wanted to  canvass w i th  you,  

Cha i r ,  wh ich  is  jus t  b r ie f l y  exp la in  the  re la t ionsh ip  he  had 

w i th  Mr  Gav in  Watson to  an  ex ten t  tha t  i t  i s  necessary  fo r  

th is  Commiss ion  …[ in tervenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    He d id  tha t  qu i te  a t  some length  las t  

t ime.   Mr  Makwet la ,  I  thought  you  d id  tha t  qu i te  a t  length  

las t  t ime.  

MR MAKWETLA :   Yes,  indeed,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MAKWETLA :   I  wou ld  –  I  wou ld  –  yes.  

ADV MOSIKILI :   Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKWETLA :   Bu t  a l l  what  i s  impor tan t… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MAKWETLA :   A l l  what  i s  maybe a  de ta i l  tha t  was never  10 

ev ident  o r  c lea r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  ja .  

MR MAKWETLA :   I s  tha t  when I  met  w i th  Mr  Gav in  Watson,  

the  day I  asked h im fo r  th is  serv ice  and when I  d iscovered 

tha t  h is  company  a lso  executes  domest ic  secur i t y  because  

I  was not  aware  o f  tha t ,  I  was meet ing  Gav in  Watson fo r  

the  second t ime in  my l i fe ,  the  f i rs t  t ime hav ing  been the  

year  be fore  when  I  v is i ted  BOSASA wi th  the  o f f i c ia ls  o f  the  

depar tment ,  th is  was the  second t ime I  was meet ing  w i th  

h im.   I  know the  Watson bro the rs  bu t  I  never  had any  20 

exposure  to  Gav in  Watson.   I  know h i s  b ro the r  Ronn ie  

Watson ve ry  we l l  and i t  i s  a  long s to ry  tha t  I  can ta lk  about  

tha t ,  bu t  no t  Gav in  Watson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MAKWETLA :   My re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Gav in  was 
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p ro fess iona l  and to  tha t  ex ten t ,  Cha i r ,  I  can  share  w i th  the  

Commiss ion  the  i ssues I  took  up  w i th  Gav in  in  re la t ion  to  

the  corpora te  soc ia l  investment  o f  BOSASA,  the  work  tha t  

they d id  in  the  const i tuency where  I  was in  Mpumalanga,  a  

who le  o rphanage  or ,  you know,  fami l ies  where  parents  

were  pe r ished to  the  A IDS pandemic ,  they th ings tha t  they 

d id  to  tha t  –  we can send the  repor ts  fo r  the  Commiss ion  to  

see fo r  i t se l f .   I  have had a  pro fess iona l  re la t ionsh ip  and  

noth ing  e lse .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  10 

MR MAKWETLA :   Thank you,  Cha i r .  

ADV MOSIKILI :   I  th ink  tha t  w i l l  be  i t  f rom us,  Cha i r ,  we  

are  very  much indebted,  Cha i r ,  fo r  the  great  indu lgence.   

We thank you so  much,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  bu t  i f  there  are  

aspects  tha t  maybe you or  Mr  Makwet la  th ink  were  no t  

covered,  you cou ld  jus t  ask  to  pu t  in  a  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t  to  dea l  w i th  them but  I  th ink  we can s top  here .   

But  thank you ve ry  much to  you and to  Mr  Makwet la  and 

thank you,  Ms Mole fe .   I  th ink  tha t  I  w i l l  j us t  ment ion  fo r  20 

the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  tha t  we done w i th  the  hear ing  o f  

o ra l  ev idence except  fo r  about  f ive  or  s ix  w i tnesses p lus  

the  Pres ident  whose ev idence w i l l  be  heard  la te r  in  Ju ly .    

So there  w i l l  be  no  fu r ther  o ra l  ev idence th is  week 

nor  next  week so  th is  i s  the  end  fo r  now and then i t  w i l l  
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jus t  be  those f i ve  or  s i x  w i tnesses and then the  P res ident  

la te r  in  Ju l y .   But  thank you very  much,  Mr  Mos ik i l i ,  thank  

you very  much Mr  Makwet la .   We wi l l  now –  thank you,  Ms 

Mole fe ,  we w i l l  now ad journ .   Thank you.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 
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